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Letter to
Sharehofdérs

31 4

Mr. Sanjay Dhingra
(Chairman &
Managing Director)

in this year of 2010 - 2011 our Company KDIL has achieved unprecedented growth over & above the lost year's exemplary performance.
This year we have achieved many milestones crossing Rs. 1600 crores furmnover and growth of over 150% in Profits after Tax over last year
being some of them.

rowih even in furbulent times. Today we are one of the fustest growing
hdustry as it is the highest contributor fo the rural Indion economy and

{ congratulate you and the whole fearn of KDIL on achieving such high
Dairy companies in india. There is o tremendous scope of growth inou
as we know, 70% population of India still resides in our villages.

The dairy sector needs fo be in the forefront of our social fife. There is nead to identify the foods thot can improve human health. This fopicisn
strange to our Indian society. Consumgption of mik and milk products have been on integral part of every Indian. indian civilization is perhaps the
first one fo have laid significant importance on the inclusion of mitk in daly diet. The need for fresh discussion is arising from the fact that with the
growing offfuence in the society there is increasing incidence of lifestvie diseases. The current rate af which our health is showing decline, it
requires pointed affention of ali the leamed: researchers, health experts and dieficians. # is this agenda that put the onus on the dairy sector.
There is o need fo re-emphosize and highlight advantages of Dalry food,

i hold the agenda on behalf of thousands of shareholders of Kwality Dairy. | wish to fulfill the expectations of the shareholders for that Fhave o
drearn and hove a vision. it is o dauniing task But | dare Jo vision because | feel strengthened by the positive aura that is refiected on me.

Our group has expanded operation of dairy af o rapid pace. From a capacity 1o handle 50,000 lires daily fo 17 lakh fitres daoily. From g pliot
project of setting up a rural network of just 100 vilages and o few thousond formers in Haryana, Kwalily is venturing info oll the neighboring
stales investing Rs. 1000 crores over a period of next five years. It is not a mere expansion in terms of capacities and content. Kwalily has an eye
for quality of all consumer products. That is what draws us to buy mitk directly from the milk producer.

Kwality Dairy also stands for bringing more and more health food for human consumpiion, We are very grateful fo the National Dairy Research
instifute for the developmentat and applied research that they are carrying on. Itis their research on establishing a laboratory scale method to
produce low-cholesterol ghee that caught our afiention. We decided fo associie with thelr scientists in veniuring info commercial production.
We jointly developad the technique, technology and processes to help us standardize production of ghee with 85% less cholesterol. This has
given advantage to Kwality Dairy, being the first in the dairy secior, to have ventured into launching “Dairy Best Liviite™. | invite all of you fo fest
“Dairy Best Liviite” low-cholesterol ghee and give us your voluntory feedback.

We shall provide best quality produdts to improve the health of India and thus fulfilling our social responsibility along with our economic
responsibility to make profits for our stakeholders thus making inclusive growth,

twould also like fo inform you that your company has decided fo increase its global fooiprind and open o whally owned subsidiary in Dubai that
will open new markets for our products.

Atlast i would like to congratulate you on listing of your company's stock on NSE Ticker.

Thank You
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information

‘ Gl?“m{lﬂ & Mamgmg D;r&dﬁr) .
scutive Director]

ependent Director]

{independent Director]

riﬁ@‘& Assocmtes .
Chcﬁered Accountanis,
Bankers Registrar and
Bank of India Share Transfer Agents
Bank of Baroda . ~ Skyline Financial Services Pvi. Lid.
Andhra Bank . . D - 153/4, Ist Floor, '
Allahabad Bank o Okhla Industrial Areq,
Corporation Bank Phose |, New Delhi - 110020
{CICI Bank Limifed , . '
IDBI Bank

Cathiolic Syrian Bank

Corporate Office

KDIL House

£-82, Shivaji Place, Rajouri Garden,
New Delhi - 110 027

Registered office & Works

Village Softa, Tehsil Palwal
Faridobad, Haryano - 121 004, India
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innovation & Technology has been defining
our w@» of working here ot Kwality Dairy
indial Lirited ‘ '

At the onset of a new decade in .

the 21st Century, we are commitied fo work
towards becoming the laader in the doiry
food business and estoblishing the industry
benchmarks for others 1o follow.

. . We are commited fo increase all the
_ stokeholders value by creating an
organization that's respected and envied

at the same fime.

Bairy industry is the single largest contributor fo the rural incomes amounting to
almost 1% of GOP and thus touches the lives of maximum families in rural India.
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Journey
of “Dairy Best”
so far...

With the successful launch of Super Brand
Dairy Best, the products have been widely
distributed and accepted by the consumers.
Post the acceptance, KDIL thought of
systaining the demand by getiing info an
agreement with Grey Worldwide as their
creative agency, one of the leading Ad
agencies in World. KDIL began its pramotion
for "Dairy Best” Pure Ghee with a message
of Purity with a very catchy radio fingle
which was aired on leading radio stofions.
Print ads were olso released in the leading
dailies like The Times of india, Hinduston
Times, Punjab Kesor, Nav Bharat Times and
more for creating consumer owareness. The
promotion was done in Delhi, Rajasthan,
Punjab and Haryona.

KDU. then infroduced 100% pure Cow Ghee
a product well-regarded & valued in the
Indian tradition. its uses have been
described in our historic Vedas &
Upnishads. Apart from traditional value, it
hos scientific research to back ifs daim os o
very useful product.

Regular use of Cow Ghee can prevent
Breast Cancer ~ NDRI

After 100% pure Cow Ghee, KDIL infroduced
o revolutionary product in the market in
collaboration with NDR! “Doiry Best Liviite”.
To faunch the product affer many
deliberations as o who can truly represent
the Brand. KDIL signed Bollywood Diva,
Bipasha Basu as their brand ambassador o
launch its revolutionary product in the
market. The USP of the product is that it has
85% Less Cholestarol than any other Pure
Ghee available in the market. The product is
unique and that makes if one-of-its-kind.
Liviite has been developed and patented by
Naotional Dairy Research instifule INDRI,
Karnal of ICAR and ficensed by National
Research and Development Corporation
INRDC).

Company did o 360 degree promotional
campaign for “Dairy Best Liviite” with ofi the
mediums namely electronic, print, outdoors
and digital. The radio campaign was aired
on leading radio channels to educate
consurner about the healthy fiving in the fost
moving world and lHestyles. Atthe same
time, the company started its promotion in
the leading General Enterfoinment Channels
IGEC's} namely Colors, ZEE and Star Plus
with their leading programs Balika Vadhu,
Pavitra Rishte and Praligya fo nome some.

As we all know thot cricket is regarded as
religion in india, with iCC World Cup
happening in Indio, KDIL sponsored iis ad
during the maotches. The company was
associate sponsor of Star Parivaar Awords
which were held in Macau.

Simultaneously, alf the leading dailies of
different states were taken fo promole the
product in different regions. Cormpany also
promoted its product heavily in Delhi
thraugh cutdoor sites in Delhi & NCR.
Different sites sizing from 20sq fis fo 800sq
fis were foken to moke consumer aware
about the product. Moreover, Press
Conference was organized in Ashoka Hotel
wherein Bipasha herself spoke cbout the
product and also how she is associoted
with “Dairy Best Liviite” in her dafly routine.

The company wanted consumer 1o be
aware of goodness of ghee. in this regard
BTL activities iike canopies were installed o
different refail locations. Consumers were
muade fo faste the product by gefting a dish
prepared in “Dairy Best Livite”, so that, there
are no queries in terms of different toste,
color, lexture and aroma. Leafiets were
distributed t consumer's doorsteps educat-
ing them obout the different cooking
mediums and the advaniages of ghee in
today's lifesiyle.
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Kwality Dairy presents

Indla S First ' re Ghee with

A morning jog. Meals on time. Avoiding
junk food. And a 6-hour sleep at night.
You know that following simple tips like
these help you in leading a healthy
lifestyle.

But your hectic lifestyle hardly gives you
a moment to pay attention to your
health. That’s why, we at Kwality Dairy
{India) Ltd. have introduced Dairy Best
Livlite Pure Ghee. India’s only pure ghee
with 85% less cholesterol.

So go ahead, make a change in
your cooking medium to get the
blessing of a long and healthy life.

ALRY

PURE GHEE

Jug Jug liyo!




Media
Campaigns
& Brand
Initiatives

The idea is quite simple. What you eat defines your health and your sfate
of healih reflecis on your daily aciivities, aftitude and behavior. A
balanced diet, made up of healthy food is essential for mainfoining your
good health otherwise you would be giving an open invitation to excess
of cholesterol. And you very well know how common chronic diseases
like stroke, diabetes, cancer and osteoporosis are.

with @ kind of lifestyle that you follow foday, body is deficient of the
activities and exercise that if actuclly needs. Moreover, you further
damage your health by ecting out excessively ond adopting fast
cooking methods. in such a scenario, good heclth depends o lof on the
cooking medium that you use.

Switch to Dairy Best Liviite. It's Indiar’s first ever pure ghee that confains 85% less cholesterol than regular
ghee or oil.

You might be living with this notion that ‘ghee’ is unhealthy for your body. But ihe fact remains rue that Ghee has been a majot ingredient in
several Ayurvedic processes. The purity of ghee is unmatched and ill dote there has been no alternative fo ghee.

Bhaavaprakaasd, o major 16th cenfury Ayurvedic fext says: "Ghee Is sweel in faste and cooling in energy, rejuvenating, good for the eyes ond
vision, enkindles digestion, bestows luster and beouly, enhanices memory and staming, increases the infellect, promoles longevity, is an
aphrodisiac and protects the body from various diseases”.

KDIL legacy and the new Livlite

Kwality Diary Indio Limited is o leading dairy produdts company amongst the private seclor dairy industries in Indin. With quality, infegrity and
technology being the halmark of its growth, Kwality Diary india Limited is all poised 1o bring you similar healthy yet tosty offerings in the future.
KDIL's Uvlite is @ pertect choice for people who have ¢ hectic esiyle und need a healthy cooking medium.

Diary Best Liviite: A whole new way fo o healthy ealing habit

« Developed and patented by National Doiry research of India (NDRY) Karndl, of ICAR and licensed by National Research and Development
Corporation INRDC}

« Liviite maintains good cholesterol level and helps lower bad chalesterol levels.
¢ llgives you Vitamin A, D, riboflavin as well os minerals like caldum, mﬁgne&siuﬁ, phosphorous and potassium.
s+ Halso contains CLA (conjugated linoleic acid] essential for the funclioning of the nervous system.
What mokes Liviite essential for your health?

s Liviite doesnt contain oxidised cholesterol or frans-fatty acids, associated with heart diseases. It imparts the goodness of fatty acdds
without the problems of oxidised cholesteral, transfotly acids or hydrogenated fots.

o lslinoleic acid lunsaturated fatly aeld essentiof for growih) helps in regular body growih,

« Livlite contains high quality edible fats. These fols are lower saturated fatty acids. Because of this, Livlite Is easily digestible. Ifs rate of
absorption is 95%, highest among all fafs and cils.

= vlite resists spoilage by micro-orgonisms.
« Because of its butric and linoleic acid conlents, Liviite has anfi-viral and anti-cancer properties.
e Livlite doesnt need refigeration.

s Liviile has three essential properties - delivery, digestion {of the medicinel, and obsorption that help in keeping you healthy.
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Snapshots of
Press
Conference

09



Key Take out

from

researches
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Many researches have been conducted and
snippets of few are as follows

TVC:

«  The Liviite TVC has enjoyed very good reach amongst people. The ones who saw, the ad majorily have been able to
recall the right brand!it

e Good Execution recall: The shot where Bipchsa prepared Somosas in Ghee and the man relishes them, has caught the
attention of more than a third of the audience of the TVC. Also this recall of Bipasha's message of the Ghee having 85%
less cholesteral, and low fat bas been high

s Good message recall: successiul in communicating the key message of low cholesierol/ low fat ghee, which is good in
taste and is healthy!

Print
Outdoor:

¢ The print ad has had a minimaol reach but correct brand association is happening amongst those who hove seen it

¢ Good message recall: Successful in communicating that it is low cholesterol/ low fat ghee, which is tasty and healthy.
fto about a third of the audience}

¢ Though it had lower reach, the print/ outdoor creative per say has been iked more and creates a relatively higher
Purchase Infent than TVC. - focus on increasing reach and capitalising on good performance of the creative

Oﬁlernli
~ Campaign:

s The compaign’s success is reflected in the fact that equity of the brand has actually increased amongst 62% of people.

e .66 bquity iImpact score Implies a very positive impact of the campaign on the brand sales is expected.

«  People with higher equity perception/ improved equily for the brand Maintain high and change increase segments),
associate the brands with being value for money, high quality national brond, frustworthy, premium, good for heaith
and fits with modern lifestyle.
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Operations




Milk Chilling
Centre

13



Notice For
Nineteenth
Annual
General
Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the
Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of
the Members of KWALITY DAIRY #NDIA]
LIMITED will be held on Monday, the
26th day of September, 2011 at 11.00
AM at Registered Office of the
Company at Village Softa, Tehsil Pahwal,
Faridabad, Horyana - 121004, fo
wransact the following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1

2

3

4.

To receive, consider and adopt the
Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2011 and Profit & Loss Account for the
year ended on that date, Together with
the reports of the Direciors and Audifors
thereon.

To declare dividend for the finoncial year
2010-1%

To appoint a Director in place of Mr.
Arun Srivastave, who retires by rotation
and being eligibie, offers himself for
re-appoiniment.

To consider and if thought fit, 1o pass the
following resolution with or without
modificationis) the following resolution
as ordinary resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant o the
provisions of section 224 and other
applicable provisions, f any, of the
Componies Act, 1956, M/s. PP,
Mukerjee & Associntes, Chartered
Accountants, refiring Auditors of the
company be and are hereby
re-uppointed s Auditors of the
Company , 1o hold the office from the
conclusion of this Annual General
Mesting until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting ot
remuneration to be fixed by the Board of
Directors and reimbursement of
out-of-pocket expenses, travelling ond
other expenses incurred by them for
carrying the audit.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider und if thought fit, to

pass with or without modification(s)

the following resolution as
ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo Section
260 of the Companies Ad, 1956, Mr.
Sidhant Gupta, who was appointed as
an Additional Director with effect from
18th April, 2011 and who holds office
upto the date of this Annual General
Mesting and pursuant fo Secion257

and other applicable provisions, if any of

the Companies Act, 1956 Mr. Sidhant
Gupla be ond is hereby elecled as o
Director of the Company, liable fo refire
by rotafion.”

6. To consider and if thought fit fo
puss, with or without
modification(s] the following

resolution as SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

TRESOLVED THAT pursuant fo the
provisions of Sections 8101A} and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Ad, 1956 (including any
muodificationis] or re-enacimentls)
thereof, for the time being in force} and
other applicable laws, rules and
regulations and in accordance with the
Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company and lisfing

agreements between the Company and

the Stock Exchanges where the shares

of the Company are listed and subject fo

such approvals, permissions and

sanctions as may be necessary from the

Government of India, Reserve Bunk of
India “RBI™), Securities and Exchange
Board of India HSEBP), Registror of
Companies, NCT of Dethi & Haryana

and/or any other regulatory authorilies,

any other competent authorities,
institutions or bodies, within or outside
india and subject fo such conditions,

alterations and modifications as may be

prescribed by such concerned

authotities while granting such
approvals, permissions and sanclions,
which the Board of Direciors fhereinafter
referred to as the “Board” which term
shall be deemed to include any
commitieels) duly constifuted/io be
constifuted by the Board fo exercise its
powers including the powers conferred
by this resolution} is hereby authorized
at s discretion fo accept, consent of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to
offer, issue and allot fincluding with
provisions for reservations on firm and
Jor competitive basis, of such part of
issue and for such categories of parson
including employees of the Company os
may be permitted) by way of rights issue
and/or public issue and/or private
placement and/or Qualified Institutional
Placements under chapter Vil of the SEBI
tissue of Copital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009
and/or against subscription in foreign/
indian Currency, through prospecius
and/or offering circular/offer letier/ term
sheet, equity shares of the Cornpany
twhich shall rank pari-passu to the
existing equity shares of the Company)
{the “shares”™), and/or non-converfible
and partly convertible debentures, with
or without warrants, and/or Global
Depository Receipts/Global Deposiiory
Shares {“GDRs/GDSs™) and/or
American Deposifory
Receipts/Arnarican Depository Shares
{“ADRs/ADSS™) agoinst the issue of
underlying shares and/or foreign
currency convertible bonds (“FCCRS™)
converiible into equity shares, which
shail rank pari passu with the then
existing thereinafter referred to as
“securities™}, whether to remain
unlisted or fo be listed on any stock
exchanges in Indio or any other
international stock exchange oulside
india, fo resident or persons resident
ouiside India including Foreign
institutional investors/Qualified
institutional Buyers (“QiBs™)/
compaonies/ individuals in Indic
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or abrood, with or without an
overalioiment/green shoe oplion, 03
may be permitied under applicable
lows, rules & regulations and policy
whether or not they are members of the
Company in such form and terros,
including as to pricing, the ratio in which
such securities may be offered, issued
and allofted 1o the existing
sharehoiders, the number of securities
io be issued, foce volue of the securities,
rate of interest, premium, number of
equity shares to be alioted on
conversion, exercise of rights aftached
with warranis, ratio of exchange of
shares and/or warronts and/or any
other financial instruments, peried of
conversion/redemption/fixing of record
date or book closure, adjusiment
conditions for corporate actions and
other refated or incidenial matters as
may be decided and deemed
appropriate by the Board upto o sum of
Rupees 10,000 million finclusive of
premium as may be determined by the
Boord! {or on equivaient amount in any
foreign currency} in one or more
franches, at such price of prices, ot ¢
premium or discount to market price or
prices and in such manner and on such
terms and conditions as the Board may
in its absolute discretion think i, in
consultation with lead managers and/or
underwriters and/or advisors as may be
appointed by the Bourd, whether or
without an option to subscribe for
additional securities.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without
prejudice fo the generalify of the above
and subject fo alf opplicable lows, the
aforesaid issue of securities may have
all or any terms or combination of ferms
in accordance with Indian laws and/or
international proctices and reguictions
including, but not limited to, condilions
in relation fo payment of inferest,
additional interest, premium on
redemption, prepayment and other debt
service payments whatsoever, and all
such ferms are provided in issue of
securities of this nature internationally
and/or domestically including terms for
issue of shares upon conversion of
securifies or varigtion of conversion
price of the securifies during the ferm of
securities as the Board deems fit and
approprigte and the 8oard is also
entifled 1o enter info and execute alf
such arrangements/agreements, as the
case may be, with any lead maonagers,

underwriters, regisirar, advisors,
guarantors, rustees, agents,
depositories, custodians and all such
agencies as may be involved or
concerned in such offering of securities
and io remunerate off such agencies
including the payment of commissions,
brokerage, fees or the fike and also fo
seek the listing of such securiies or
securifies representing the some inone
or more stock exchanges within and/or
outside India”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bowrd
may enter info any agreement with any
agency or body for issue and aflofment
of securities in such formis) with such
features and atribules as are prevalent
in domestic as well gs infernational
capital markets for instruments of that
nature and to provide for the tradability
or free transferability thereof as per the
domestic as well as infernational
praciices and regulations and under the
norms and practices prevalent in the
international markels ond the securifies
issued in foreign market and/or Indian
markets shall be deemed o have been
made abroad and/or in the
infernational market and/or ot the place
of issue of the securifies in the

‘infernational markets and/or Indion

market ond may be governed by
applicable Indian laws and/or foreign
lows, os the case may.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT inthe
event of issue of securifies by way of a
qualified institutional placement fo QIB's
in accordance with chapter Vil of the
SEB! flssue of Capitol & Disclosure
Requirement] Regulations 2009, the
relevant date on the basis of which price
of the resuliant shares shall be
determined as specified under the SEBI
ssue of Capital & Disclosure
Requirerment! Regulations 2009 shall be
the date of the meeling in which the
board or the committes of the direclors
duly authorized by the board decide to
open the proposed issue of securities.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the
event the securities ore proposed o be
issued through FCCBs/ADRS/GDRs, the
relevant date for the purpose of pricing
the securities is the date of the meeling
af which the Board decides 1o open the
proposed issue, as specified in the Issue
of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
and Ordinary Shares fhrough

Depository Receipt Mechanism),
Scheme 1993.°

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board
be and is hereby authorized 1o finalise
and approve the offering circular/
prospecius/plocement document/term
sheels/agreements, in respect of the
proposed issue of the securifies and fo
authorize any director or directors of the
Company or any other officer or officers
of the Company to sign the above
documents for and behalf of the
Company together with the authority fo
amend, vary or modify the same and o
give such declarations, affidavifs,
cerfificates, consents as may be
required from fime fo fime, and fo
arrange for the submission of the
offering crcular/ prospecius/ placement
document/ terrn sheels agreements,
and ony amendments and supplements
thereto, with any applicable stock
exchanges, government and requiatory
authorities, instifutions, as may be
required.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in cose
securities are offered through rights
issue, the shareholders shall have right
fo renounce oll or any the shares
offered in favor of any person or
persons who are Indion residenis
subject o the right of the Board fo refuse
alioiment o o person, not being o
shareholder of the company without
assigning any reason. The members
con apply for addiional shares and they
may be entifled o allotment of
additional shares at the discretion of the
Board ond in consuliation with the stock
exchanges. The renouncees may also
apply for additions! shares and they
may be entitled to allotment of
additional shares of the discretion of the
Boord and in consuliotion with the stock
exchanges.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of
any over subscription of the issue, the
Board be and is hereby authorized fo
retain such of the amount, and issue
and alot such securifies as may be
permitted in accordance with applicable
taws, rules & provisions in consuliation
with concerned authorities including
stock exchanges.”

“RESOIVED FURTHER THAT the Board
be ond is hereby entitled to vary, modify,
alfer any of the foregoing ferms and
condifions of thelr discretion and



in conformily with those as may be
approved by the SEBY, RBI or any other
appropricie authority and/or
department.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for giving
effect to this resolution, the Board be
and is hereby authorized o do all such
acts, deeds and things as the Board
may at its absolute discretion, consider
necessary, usual and expedient,
including without limitation the ulilization
of issue proceeds, entering into of
underwriting, memorandum of
undersionding, marketing and
depository arrangemenis, and with
power on behalf of the Corapany 1o
sefile any question, remove any difficulty
or doubt that may arise from time o
fime in relation to the offer, issue,
aflotment and utilization of the issue
proceeds of the securities for the
Compaony’s projecis/expansions/
modernizations/acguisitions/ direct
invesimenis in the subsidiary
companies/icint ventures/repayment of
debts/ other corporate needs, as they
moy deem fit”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the
purpose of giving effect fo this
resolution, the Board/comimitiee be
and is hereby authorized o do all such
acts, deeds and things as the Board
may at its absolute discrelion deem
necessary, proper or desiruble and fo
seffle any question, difficulty or doubt
that may arise with regurd to the offer/
issue, oliotment and ulilization of the
issue proceeds including but without
fimnitation to the making of listing
apglications, creation of such
morigage/ charge, if necessary, under
applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956, in respect of the oforesaid
securities either on pari-passu basis or
otherwise, giving or authorizing the
giving by concerned persons of such
declarations, offidavits, certificates,
consents and cuthorities as may be
required from fime to fime, without
being required to seek any further
consent or approval of the members
and the members shall be deemed fo
have given their approval therelo
expressly by the authority of this
resolution.”

RESOLED FURTHER THAT in case of any
debitinstrument including but without
limitation fo ony debentures, bonds, the
members shall be deerned fo have

given their approval expressly by
the quthority of this resolution

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board,
be and is hereby authorized to delegule
aff the above powers and authorities o
any person or persons of committee of
the Board, in connection with the issue
of securifies, and fo give effect to the
obove resolutions.”

To consider and if thought fit to
pass the following Resolution with
ar without modification if any, as o
SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

CRESOLVED THAY pursuant o section
269, 198, 309, 310 and Schedule Xi of
the Companies Acl 1956 and alf other
applicable provision, if any fincluding
any statutory modifications or
re-enactment thereof from time to time]
and the opplicoble cdauses of Listing
Agreement, Shri Sidhani Gupto is
appointed as Executive Director for o
period of five years with effect from 18th
April, 2011, on the remuneration as
approved by the remuneration

cormmitiee and terms and condition as

mentioned below and agreed by Shri
Sichant Gupta.”

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

A} Salary, Allowance and Perquisites:

. Aliowance and Perqui

Basic Salory: Rs.1,00,00,000/- Rupees
One Crores Only} per ormum,

;i addition
to Basic Solary the Executive Direcior will
be entitled to allowances and
perquisites in the nature of
accommadotion furnished or ofherwisel
or house rent allowance in fieu thereof;
house maintenance alfowance together
with reimbursement of expenses and/
or alfowance for utilization of gas,
eleciricity, woter, fumishing and repairs;
medical reimbursement; leave travel

concession for self and family including

dependents; club fees, medical
insurance and such other perquisifes
and/or allowance not exceeding
Rs.10,00,000/- RsTen Lacs only) per
annum. The said perquisiies and
allowance shail be evaluated, wherever
applicable, as per the provision of

income Tax Act, 1961 or any other rules
there Lmd(\r or my statutory
alelei rw

ﬁwre@f
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perquisifes and allowances shall
be evaluated of the actual cost.

Cther Benefits: The Executive Director
moy aiso be eligible to the following
perquisifes, which shall not be included
in the computation of the celling on
remuneration specified above:

Company’s contribution fo Provident
Fund, Superannuation Fund, and
Annuity Fund as per the rules ofthe
Company fo the extent these rules singly
or put together is not fuxable under the
Income Tax Act, 1961,

Grotuity as per the rules of the company.

Leave with full poy as per the company’s
rules.

Encashment of leave of the end of the
fenure.

General .

The office of the Executive Direcior may
be terminated by the company or the
concernad Director by giving 3 fihree]
months’ prior nolice in writing.

{ii} The terms and conditions set out for

re-appoiniment and payment of
remuneration herein may be alfered
and varied by Board os it may, fom
fime fo fime, deem fit.

{#} f in ony finondial year ofter the

appointment, the Company has no
profits or inadequate profits, the
Executive Direcior sholl be entitled 1o
receive the saome remuneration,
perquisites and benefiis as specified in
ihe above dauses, subjeci o
compliance with the applicable
provision of Schedule Xii of the
Companies Act, 19567

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board
of Directors of the Company be and is
hereby authorised o do ol such ads,
deeds, matters and things as inis
obisolute discretion, or consider
necessary, expedient or desirable, and
1o setfle any question or doubt that may
arise in relation thereto and the Board
shali have absolute powers fo withhold
the increments, decide breokup of the
remuneration within the above soid
maximium permissible limi, in order fo
give effect to the foregoing resolution, or
as may be otherwise considered by itio
be in the best inferast of the Company.”
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8. To consider and if thought fit o
pass the foliowing Resolution with
or without modification fony, as o
SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT in modification fo the
earlier resolutions passed in this regard
and as per recommendation of the
Remuneration Cornmifiee, pursuantio
the provisions of seclions 269, 198, 309,
310 and Schedule Xit of the Companies
Act 1956 and alf other applicable
provisions, if any {including any slaiutory
modificotions or re-enactiment therecf
fror firne to fime) and the applicable
clouses of Listing Agreement, approval
of fhe members be and is hereby
accorded fo increase the remuneration
of Shi Sanjay Dhingra, who is the
Managing Director, of the company
appainted on 15th July 2008, fora
period of five years , on the ferms and
conditions 0s mentioned below and
agreed by Shri Sonjay Dhingra.

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION
A} Salary, Allowances and Perquisifes

i, Basic Solory: Rs. 1,24,00,000/-Rupeas
One Crore Twenty Four Lacs only per
annum.

il Allowance ond Perquisites: In addition
1o Basic Solary, the Managing Direclor
will be entitied fo allowances and
perguisites in the nature of
accommodation fumished or otherwise)
or house rent aliowance in lieu thereof,
house maintenance allowance fogether
with reimbursement of expenses and/
or allowance for utilization of gus,
eleciricity, water, furnishing and repairs;
medical reimbursement; leave fravel
concession for self and family including
dependents; club fees, medical
insurance ond such other perquisites
and/or allowance not exceeding
Rs.10,00,000/-{Rs.Ten Lacs onlyl per
annum. The said perquisites and
allowance shall be evaluated, wherever
applicable, as per the provision of
income Tox Act, 1961 or any other rules
there under or any statutory
modificationis) or re-enaciment thereof;
in the absence of any such rules,

. Other Be
may also be e

perquisites and aliowances shall
be evaluated of the actual cost.

The Managing Direclor
ibie to the following

Company's contribution to Provident
Fund, Superannuation Fund, and
Annuity Fund as per the rules of the
Company o the extent these rules singly
or put fogether is not taxable under the
income Tox Adl, 1961

Gratuity as per the rules of the company.

Leave with full pay as per the company’s
rules.

. Encashment of leave at the end of the

fenure,
General

The office of the Managing Direcior may
be ferminated by the company or the
concerned Direcor by giving 3 {three)
months’ prior notice in writing.

I The terms and conditions set out for

re-oppointment and payment of
remuneration herein may be aliered
and varied by Boord as it may, Fom
fime fo fime, deem fit

i} ifin any financial year offer the

appoiniment Company has no profits or
inadequote profits, the Managing
Director sholl be entitled to receive the
same remuneration, perquisites and
benefits as specified in the above
clauses, subject to compliance with the
opplicable provision of Schedule Xl of
the Companies Acdl, 1956.°

SRESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board
of Directors of the Company be and is
hereby authorised fo do alf such acts,
matters and things as in iis
absolut or consider
necessary, expedient or desirable, and
1o setfite any question or doubt that may
arise in relation thereto and the Board
shall have absolute powers to withhold
the incremants, decide breckup of the

remuneration within the obove

said

moximum permissible limit, in order fo
give effect 1o the foregoing resolution,
or as may be otherwise considered by it
1o be in the best interest of the
Company.”

9. To consider and if thought fitto

N

o v

pass the following Resolution with
or without modification fany, as o
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAY, the compaony does
promote o new 100% Wholly Owned
Subsidiary Company in Jebel Al Free
Zone, Dubagl, UAE, or any other free
zone in Dubgl, UAE, or any other place
it UAE in the name and siyle of either of
the following name or any other name
approved by Authority:

Kwality Dairy India Umited FZC or

ty Dairy Limited FZC or

Dairy India FZC or

Dairy FZC or

KDILFZC or

Kwatity Dairy Products FZC

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the
company hereby authorise My, Sidhant
Gupta, Executive Director i sign and
certify alf incorporation documents ond
to execute necessory documents
required for incorporating the same. Mr.
Sidhant Gupta is aiso authorised o
appoint consultant/oforney to fucilitole
incorporation of above mentioned
company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr.
Sidhant Gupto, Execufive Director of the
Company, be and is hereby authorized,
1o subscribe for shares of the proposed
company of the fime of ifs
incorporation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr.
Sidhant Gupta, Director of the Company
is cuthorized for operations of Dubd
Subsidiary”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, Mr. Ashok
Nayyar, shall be appointed as Manager
of the above wholly owned subsidiary of
the cornpany in Dubai, UAE or any other
person as authorised by the company.”

Piace: New Delhi
Date: September 1, 2011

7/

By Order of the Board

Deepa Kapoor
Compuany Secretary &
Complionce Officer



Nétes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE MEETING 1S
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT
BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY
Proxies, in order to be effecive, must be
received, duly filled and outhenticated ot
registered office of the Company not
fess than 48 hours before the scheduled
fime of the Meeling.

2. The relevant Explanatory Statement
pursuant fo Section 173 of the
Companies Act, 1956, sefling out
material facts relating fo the business o
ften No. 5 io 8 of the Notice as set out
above, is annexed herelo,

3. This may be faken as notice of
declaration of dividend for finandial yeor
2010-11 in accordance with Arficle 138 of
Articles of Association of the Company in
respect of dividend for that year when
declared.

4. The Register of Members and Share
Transfer books of the Company will
remain closed from Thursday, 22nd
September, 2011 fo Monday 26th
Septermnber, 2011 both days inclusive) for
the purpose of ascerioining eligibility to
dividend, if declared.

5. The dividend as recommended by the
Board of Directors, i declared at this
Annual General Meeting, shall be paid
on or after Monday, 3rd October 2011

il Tothose shareholders whose nomes
appear on the Company's Register
of Members affer giving effect to off
valid share transfers in physicol form
lodged with the Registrar and
Transfer Agents R&T Agenis] of the
Company on or before Wednesday,
21st September 2011

@ inrespect of shares held in
electronic form (demat mode),

dividend will be poid i

those "deemed members” whose
names appear in the statements of
beneficial ownership furnished by
National Securities Depository
Limited INSDL and Central
Jeposiory Services india} Umited
CHSL as ot the close of business
hours on Wednesday, 21st
September 2011

fiy Physical shares ~ Payment of
dividend through NECS: Members
holding shares in physical form are
advised to submif pariiculars of their
bank account, viz. name and
address of the branch of the bank,
MICR Code of the branch, type of
account and account number af the
earliest fo our Registrar and Share
Transter Agend, M/s Skyline
Financial Services Pyt ttd.

6. Members are requested io nolify any

change in their addresses immediately.

In any event not later than Wednesday,

21st September 2011 5o as fo enable us

fo dispaich the dividend warrants at the

correct addresses:

gl incose of shares held in physical
form, to the Registrar and Share
Transter Agent M/s Skyline Financial
Services P Uid.

bl Incose of shares held in dermat form,
Members are requested 1o update
thelr parficulars with their respective
Depaository Parficipants,

The shares of the Company are being
traded compulsorily in demat form only,
members who siill hold the shares of the

Company in physical form are advised

fo have their holdings dematerialized in
their own inferest through authorized
depository participant.

Pursuant to Section 205A read with
Section 205C of the Companies Act,
1656, the dividend amounis which
remain ungaid/unclaimed for a period

e
i

of seven years, are required lo be
wansferred o the Invesior Education and
Protection Fund of the Ceniral
Government. After such fransfer no
cloim of the members whatscever shall
subsist on the said amount. Therelore,
mernbers are requesiad o encash their
dividend warrants on priority within the
volidity period.

Members/Proxies should bring the
Attendance Slip In the Meeting duly filed
in, for attending the Meeling.

. Members desiring ony information

regarding occounts in the meeting ore
requested fo write to the Compony ot
ieast seven days before the date of
Annual General Meeting 5o as o enable
the Company o keep the information
reudy.

. The Statutory Register under the

Componies Act, 1956 Register under
Section 307 and Section 301 of the
Companies Ad, 1956} is available for
inspection af the Registered Office of the
Company during business hours
between 11.00 am 0 1.00 pm except on
holidays.

12. Members ore requested fo bring their

copy of Annual Report fo the Annudl
General Meeling.

13. The Securities and Exchange Board of

indic SEBY vide circulor ref no.
MRD/DoP/CIR-05/2007 doted April 27,
2007 made PAN the sole identification
number for ol participants fransacling in
the securities market, irespective of the
amount of such fransaction. in
Continuation of the aforesaid drcular, it
is herehy dlarified that for securities
market fransactions and off market/
private transactions involving fransfer of
shares of listed companies in physical
form, it shall be maondatory for the
fransferees) to furnish copy of PAN Card
1o the Company/ RTAs for regisiration of
such transfer of shores.
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14. information under the lisling agreement Meeling schedule fo be held on
of the Direciors proposed fo be September 26, 201
appointed/re-appointed:
Pursuant to clouse 496v) £} and 49(G} i) of
it Director seeking appointment the listing agreement}
/re-appoiniment in the Annual Generdi

Name of Director M Sidhant Gupta Mr. Arun Srivasiova

Date of Birth 10" January 1977 349 April, 1968

AgelYear} 34 Years 43 Years

e :

Date of Appointment 18" April 2011 25" june, 2003

Qualification B ComiHons] & Graduate
MBA fFinancel

Expertise in specific functional area import-Expori, Liasioning with Banks ond
Administration & Financial Institutions
Management:

Directorship held in other Companies V Nit Nl

as on dafe.

Chairman/Member of the cormnmiiiee it Chairmon of Audit Commitiee,

of the Board of Directors of the Company Member of remuneration

as on 31 March 201 committes, Shareholders/

investors Grievance Radressal
Commitiee and Share fransfer

commitice.
Chairrnan/Member of the commiliee Nit Nil
of the Director of the other companies
in which he is o director os on
31 March 2011
Audit Commiitee il Nil
Shareholder's Grievances Committee Nit Nil
Board governance and and Nit Nil
Nomination Commitiee
Compensation Commitiee/ Nil Nil
Remuneration Commitlee
Other Comimifieas Nit Nl
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Explanatory
Statement
Pursuant To
Section 173(2) of
The Companies
Act, 1956

tem No. 4

M/s P. P Mukeriee & Assodiates, Chartered
Accountants, refiring ouditors of the
Company have expressed their ability for
re-oppointment as Auditor of the Company
and have requesied to consider the some
for the FY 2011-12.

None of the Directors of the Company are in
any way, concerned of interested in the
resolution.

The Board recommends the resclution set
forth in ftern No. 4 for the approval of the
members.

ltem No5:

M. Sidhant Gupta, who was appointed os
an Additional Direcior of the Board Meeting
held on 18th April, 2011, vacates office af this
Annual General Meeting under Section 260,
of the Companies Act, 1856, He is being
proposed fo be appointed as o Director and
necessary notice has been recelved under
Section 257 from a Member, proposing his
candidature together with the required
deposit.

M. Sidhant Gupta is a dynamic professionol
with over 10 yeors experience in various
fields of business being import-export,
business administration & management,
His infroduction in the Board of the
Company has provided new perspeclives o
the company from opening new avenues of
business fo innovative media campaigns for
exponsion of business.

His appointrment as o Director shall be in the
interest of the Company.

The Director recommends 1he resolution for
approval s an Crdinary Resolution.

M. Sidhant Gupla is interested in the
resolution as it relofes to his appoiniment.
None of the other Directors of the Company
are, In any way, concerned or Inferested in
the said resolution.

Hem Nodk:

The Cornpany has taken up and intends o
take up in fulure several growth inifiatives
like expansions, modernizations,
strengthening of procurement mechanism,
establishment of milk chilling cenires,
overseas direct invesiment in subsidiary
companies/ioint ventures, elc. and
therefore, there is a need fo strengthen ifs
financial position by augmenting long-term
resources. The Company plans fo achieve
this by issue of securities in infernationad
markels and/or in domestic markets.

Several modes are avallable for raising
capital - by way of Public Issue, Rights
issue, OiFs under Chapter VIl of Securities
and Exchange Board of India issue of
Capiial and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009, Private Placement,
Giohal Depository Receipts/Shares,
American Depository Receipts, Foreign
Currency Convertible Bonds or other equity
related instruments in the domestic and in
the international market.

The Company is consulfing various
investment bankers for raising capifal
through one or more such manner or such
instruments upto a sum of Rupees 10,000
million in one or more franches, whether
with or without an option to subsaribe for
addifional securifies.

The Company intends to use the funds so
raised towards capital expenditure for
strengthening of procurement mechonisr,
establishment of milk chilling cenires,
expansions, modernizalion, new projects,

overseas direct investment in subsidiary

5

companies/ioint ventures, any other use
which may be required in the normal

siness and as permitted under applicable
low from fime fo fime.

The detailed terms and conditions for the
offer and the righis and privileges of the
holders of equity related instruments, with or
without warranis, non-convertible

debentures/partly converiible debentures
with or without warrants and/or Global
Depository Receipts/Shares 'GDRs/GDSs"
and/or American Depository Receipis/
Shares PADRs/ADSS”) against the issue of
underlying Shares and /or Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds ("FCCBs") convertible o
the option of the holder into equity shares
therein referred to as the "Securities”), fo
resident or persons resident outside India
including foreign insfitutional investors ,
Qualified Instifutional Buyers 'QIBS" will be
determined in consuliation with the
invesiment Bankers, udvisors and
underwriters 1o be appointed by the
Compaony considering the prevailing morket
conditions and other relevant factors. The
resolution seeks to afford discretion fo the
Board of Direciors fincluding a Commillee
thereof) 'Board”) to inalize these ferms in
consuliction with the agencies oforesaid in
accordunce with applicable Indion faws
and/or international lows, The Securt
would be issued of ¢ price determined in
accordance with SEBI Regulations, FEMA
Regulations, and other applicable laws. The
conversion of any of the securifies info
equity shares of a later stage, if any, shall
not be less than the minimum price as
calculoted as per SEBI Regulations and/or
any other authority concerned.

in view of the above, consent ofthe
shareholders is being sought, by way of o
Special Resolution, pursuant fo the
provisions of Section 81014}, and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956 and other applicable
laws, rules and regulations and in
accordance with the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company ond
listing agreements between the Company
and the Stock Exchanges where the shares
of the Company ore listed. The Equity Shares
arising out of issue of Securities pursuantto
this Resolution shall rank pari-passu in alt
aspects with the existing Equity Shares of the
Company.

in view of the reasons aforesaid, an
enabling resolution s proposed for
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consideration of the sharehoiders 1o give
adequate flexibility and discretion to the
Board to findlize the terms of the issue of
Securities.

The Board recommends the resolution for
approval of the Members of the Company.

None of the Direciors of the Company
is concerned or interested in the
resolution except fo the extent of thelr
shareholding.

item Nod:

Mr. Sidhant Gupta is appointed as Executive
Director of the Company for a period of five
years with effect from 18th April, 2011 onthe
yearly remuneration of Rs. 10,000,000 Rs
One Crore only) per annum/-, The
remuneration has been approved by the
remuneration commitfee fuking info account
the industry standards and projecied
growih of the company.

Mr. Sidhant Gupta is B.CorniH], MBA
{Finance} by qualification, he has an
experience of over 10 years in various fields
of business being import-expor, business
administration & managerment his
introduction in the Board of the Company
has provided new perspectives fo the
company from opening new avenues of
business 1o innovative media campaigns for
expansion of business. He is looking after
day fo day affairs of the corpany along
with working on procuring finances for the

expansion of the company, liasioning with

various Government depariments, working
on new tie-ups for the company as well as
planning overseas foray of the Company.

Therefore, your Board of Directors
recommend for approval of appoiniment of
wr Sidhant Gupla as Executive Director of
the Company af the above remuneration as
proposed in flem No. 7 of the nolice by way
of speciol resolution. Except Mr. Sidhont
Gupta, being oppointee, none of the
Directors are inferested or concerned in the
resolution.

Hem No.8:

Shri. Sunjoy Dhingra who is the Managing
Director, of the company appointed on 15th
July 2008, for o period of five years, is taking
core of production, marketing and looking
into the exponded business activities of the
Company. The Remuneration commitiee
has considered that the remuneration being
paid fo Shit Sanjoy Dhingra is inadequate
with respect o the efforts he put, which has
resulied furnaround of the company from o
company with accumuloted losses of 18
Crores 1o a company maoking profits with a
turnover of Rs. 1600 Crores within o short
span of § years and the company is baving
adequate profits thus rernuneration
compitiee has recommended the yearly
remuneration of Shii Sanjay Dhingra be
increased 1o Rs. 1,24,00,000 Rs. One Crore
Twenty Four Lacs only) per annurn.

Mr. Sanjay Dhingra has a wide experience of
over 16 yeors in FMCG Industry incuding
dairy industry with varied exposure in sales,
marketing, administration and management.

Therefore your Board of Direclors
recommend for approval for revision in the
rernuneration payable to Shri Sunjay
Dhingra as proposed in flem No. 8 of the
notice by way of special resolution. Except
Shri Sanjay Dhingra, being uppointee, none
of the Direclors are interested or concerned
in the resolution.

Htem Mo, 9;

The Monagement is proposing fo open a
new Whoily Owned Subsidiary company in
free frade zone of Dubai fo increase its
glebat footprint and fo tuke benefit of the
oppotiunities avaiiable outside india.

So being present in Dubai opens for us
various markets such as Middle-Easi,
fastern European, Africa efc. The Culiure,
living habits and food habits are similar to
indian sub-continent thus it will dlow us o
utilize our experience and expertise and
goin focthold in such markets.

The Board recommends the resolution for
approval of the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors of the Compuny is
concermned or interested in the resolution
except o the extent of their shareholding.

Ploce: New Dethi

Date: September 1, 2011
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Director’s
Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting
their Nineteenth Annual Report together with
Audited Accounts of the Company for the
finonciol year ended 31st Morch 2011

Financial Highlights

“Dairy Best”. Itis first of its kind that
contcins 85% less cholesterol as compared
to the commonly available desi ghee across
the world, “Liviite” ghee (s a product
formulated by a specialized technology
developed and patented by National Dairy
Research Institute, Kamal INDRY of ICAR.
Your company has lounched the same

Details Yaar ended Yeor endad
3Lo3.20n 31.03.2010

{®s. in Lacs) {Rs. in Lacs}

Turnover 160803.62 105412.45
Profit before interest, Depreciation & Tox 9972.73 5022.52
interest & Finance Charges 3562.07 186514
Depreciation 35292 182.61
Profit before Tax 6057.73 297477
Provision for Tax including Deferred Tax 1463.42 1son
Profit/Loss after fox 459430 1794.65

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The year under review was ¢ magnificent
year of performance for the Company. This
year we have proven that the yeor 2010 was
not ¢ flash of briionce or luck. Your
Company has again delivered record
financial and operating performance amidst
challenging and volatile market condifions.

During the year, your Company has scaled
new heights and sef several new benchmarks
in terms of sales, profits, networth and asse's.
Turnover for the year was 1608.03 Crores
against 1054.12 Crores in the previous year,
reflecting a growth of 52.5% over last year in
which we had an unprecedented growth of
81% over previous year.

Profit after tax, for the year was Rs. 45.94
Crores as against Rs.17.94 Crores for the
previous year, registering an increase of
156% over last year in which we had grown
by 91% over previous year,

Launching of Revolutionary product
“Duoiry Best Liviite”

Your Company has launched another
product “Liviite” under the umbrella Brand

under a long term exclusive manufacturing
license ogreement with National Research
and Development Corporation. The “Liviite”
ghee is manufociured with best quality fresh
milk procured directly from the mitk
producers through vilinge level milk

on centers. Dairy Best “Liviite” is
packed in @ very afiractive tamper proof
packaging in Tetrapak and Tin Pocking.
invariably, the cholesterol is considered as @
cause of hardening of arteries and
consequential problern of the heart.

The freedom from cholesterof renders
“tivlite” a specialized product for good
heaith. in oddition the “Liviite” continues fo
provide the inherent qualities of ghee. it is
rich in anfioxidents and actas an aid in
absorption of vitamins and minerals from
other food, feeding oll loyers of body fissues
and serving to sirengthen the immune
system. A high concentration of butyric adid,
o fatty acid that contains anti-viral
properties, is belleved to inhibif the growth
of cancerous tumors. it is used in Indian
beauty creams to help soffen skin, and s
fypical for the freatment of burns and

;. The tamper proof packaging
ensures that the consumer gefs the original
quality producis.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Your Company had made on entry info
direct procurement of milc through milk
collection network by setfing up Milk Chilling
Centres IACC] af villoge levels. Each center
covers about 100 village spread over 8-10
procurement routes. Each village level milk
collection point has 90-100 farmers pouring
milk. Each centre generates avenues for
earning livelihood for about 10000 farmers,
thus bringing economic uplifiment in the
areq. Your Company found that the milk
obtained through this siructure has been of
commendable quality and the supplies get
ensured particulorly during the lean periods
of availability of milk in the rural arecs. The
Response 1o the pilot-project implemented
in Haryano during the last year has been
yery encouraging.

Consequently, vour Company has ventured
info sefting up large scale rural network of
milk procurement spread across Eastern
Rajasthan, Western Uttor Pradesh, Punjob
and Haryana, The fotal projected milk
collection in the next three years through
this network will be 18-20 Lac Litres Per Day
LLBDY, from about 5,00,000 farmers from
8000-10000 villages. KDL further plans fo
augment the processing fucilities
accordingly ond enhance the plont capacity
fo maich the availoble milk quantifies by
instafling new and latest machinery in the
corresponding period.

<OHL plans to put up modern Dairy Farms
with @ vision 1o produce good quality mitk af
large Dairy Forms which are professionally
managed thereby resuliing in economical
mitk production. The Dairy Farms will be
equipped with modern techniques, 1o
efficiently handle and manage up 10 10000
cows af one farm, and automatic milking
parlors for clean mitk production. Such
farms will even out the seasonal fluctuctions
and ossure supplies round the year. Further
the Farms will clse be used for production of
Organic Milk in the near future and KDIL
plans to explore the market potential for
organic milk produdis.
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KDL has been engaged in the R&D of
various value added products ond will be
Jaunching these products shortly in the
indian market. The new dairy products wil
be added to the current product mix and ¢
complete range of these products will be
tailored to meet the expeciations of
Sen-Next. The new producis range will
include producs such as high fruit yogurls,
sterilized fiavoured milk in HDPE botiles,
fong life milk in fetrapacks, ploin curd,
paneer, white and salted butter in fubs,
ready fea and coffee premixes, instant
health drink premixes, liquid mikin
pouches.

KDL has immedicte plans of foraying in the
nuiraceuticals morket and introduce
produdis to meet the national health
requirements.

Your Company is stable and focused on
long term, sustainable and profitable
growth. This stability lies in the sirength of ifs
brands, in its varied portfolio, which have
over the years buill a relationship of trust
and confidence with consumers. The
geographical extension of the markets
along with the complete range of dairy
products expansion will increase the market
share substantiolly. The producis meeling
infernational standards of quality will be
shorily launched overseas to exploit the
international markets and coniribute to
exports ond foreign exchange earnings.

Your Company is poised fo take the rightful
position, as one of the leading players, in
the indion Dairy industry.

Corporate Secial Responsibility

In ifs first steps towards the Corporaie Social
Responsibility, Your Company has inificted
struciuring faciiifies through ouisourcing fo
help the milk producers, who are direcily
linked in our commercial milk procurement
activities. In order jo help such farmers
increase the producdiivity of thelr quolity
catile and buffcloes, KDIL has provided, on
a principle of no-profit-no-loss, good quality
feed. Atternpts are on fo provide such other
technical inputs as vaccinations, artificial
insemination, and free advice on prevention
and cure of common diseases. These
activities hove been of greathelp in
improving the yield per animal, thus
improving the quality of fife of people
associated with the Company. The field stoff
of the KDIL regularly organizes farmers’
meetings to discuss their requirements of
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ioan through financial instifutions. The field
officers organize camps amongst ¢ group
ofvillages fo educate the farmers on
cormmon issues concerning health, hygiene,
sanitation, farming practices and other
social issues.

Dividend

Your Directors are pleased fo recommend o
final dividend of 0.10 per equity share of 1
each, L.e. 10% which will be paid affer your
approval of the ensuing Annual General
Mesting. The final dividend will absorb an
amount of Rs. 203.18 lacs fexcluding
dividend tax of Rs.34.53 locs). The dividend
will be poid fo members whose nomes
appear on the Company's Register of
Members affer giving effect to all valid share
transfers in physical form lodged with the
Regisirar and Transfer Agents RTA} of the
Company on or before 21 September, 201,
in respect of shares held in elecironic form
{demat mode), dividend will be paid fo
those "deemed members” whose naomes
appear in the sfatements of beneficial
gwnership furnished by National Securifies
Depository Limited NSDU and Centrol
Deposifory Services india) Umited ICDSY as
af the close of business hours on Seplember
21, 201

Subsidiary

The Manogement is proposing fo
incorporate o wholly owned subsidiary in
free frade zone of Dubai to increcse its
global foot print and to develop and cater fo
the new Markels.

So being present in Dubui opens for us
various markets such as Middle-East,
tastern European, Africa etc. The Cullure,
living habits and food habits are similar to
indian sub-continent thus it will allow us to
utilize our experience and expertise and
gain foothold in such markets.

We are planning to launch with blending
andg packing focility of 100 metric tonnes per
day 1o service our clients in the middie-east.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Anclysis
of the Company for the year under review,
as required under clouse 49 of the listing
agreement with the stock exchange, is
given as o separate statement in Annual
Report.

Directors

As per the Articles of Association of the
Company and relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, Mr. Arun Srivastava,
Director of the Company is able to refire by
rofation ¢t the ensuing Annual General
reeting and being eligible, offers himself
for re~appoiniment.

Pursuant 1o Section 260 ond other
applicable provisions of Companies Act,
1956, Mr. Sidhant Gupta was appointed os
an Additional Director of the Company with
effect fom April 18, 2011 The requisiie
notices together with necessary deposits
have been received from a member
pursuant fo Section 257 of the Componies
Act, 1956, proposing the election of Mr.
Sidhant Gupta as a Director of the
Company.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant fo the requirement of Section
2171244} of the Companies Act 1856 with
respect to Direclors’ Responsibility
Statement, and bosed on the representafion
received from operating management, the
Directors hereby confirm:

g} thatin the preparation of the annudd
accounts for the period ended on March
31, 2011, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and
there are no materiol depariure;

that the direciors had selected
appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently and that the
judgments ond estimates that are
reasonabie ond prudent so as to give @
true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the
Financial year March 31, 2011 and the
Profit of the Company for that period;

¢ that the directors had taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 for sefeguarding
the assets of the Company and for
preventing ond detecting fraud and
other irregularifies; and

di that the directors had prepared the
annual accounts for the period ended
on 31st March, 2011 as ¢ geing concam
basis.



Fined Deposils

Your Company has not raised any public
deposit during the period under review.
There was no public deposit ouistanding os
ot the beginning or af the end of the period.

Auditors

The Board of Direciars have approved
nomination of M/s PP Mukerjee &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, as
Audifors of the Company from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
ill the conclusion of next Annual General
Meeting. The Company has received a lefter
frorn them that thelr appointment, if made,
would be within the limils specified under
Saction 22418} and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

Listing
The shares of your Company are listed ot

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and
Directors are pleased to announce fhat the

Compuny’s application for listing o National
Stock Exchange of india Limited, Murmbal
has been accepled and the company’s
share is listed on NSE since 5th July, 201
with symbol KWALTY AND
[SIN-INE775801025.

Particulars of Employees

During the year under review no employee
of the Company is covered under the
provisions of Section 217(24] of the
Companies Act, 1956, read with the
Companies Porticulars of Ernployees) Rules,
1975.

Energy Conservation, Technology
Absorption And Foreign Exchange
tarings And Outgo.

The particulars os prescribed under Section
217 {itel of the Companies Act, 1956 read
with the Companies Disclosure of
Particuiars in the report of the Board of
Direciors] Rules, 1988 are sef out in on
Annexure o this report.

Corporate Governance

A report on corporate governonce, olong
with o certificate from Auditors of the
Company, regarding the cornpliance of
conditions of corporate governance os
stipulated under Clause 49 of the Uisting
Agreement, are annexed to this report.

Appreciation

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude
the continuing co-operation and assistonce
rendered by the Cenfral Government, Siade
Government, Financial institutions, Banks,
Suppliers, and other organizations in the
working of the Company.

The Direclors dlso wish fo place on record
their deep sense of apprediation for
dedicated services rendered by officers,
staff and workmen of the Company.

The Board foken this opportunity fo express
its grofitude for the confinuous support
received from shoreholders.

Place: New Dethi
Date: Septerber 1, 2011

For & on behalf of the Boord of Directors

Sanjay Dhingro
Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure 10
The Director’s
Report

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 217{(1}{e}
READ WITH COMPANMIES {DISCLOSURE
OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF
BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988
AND FORMING PART OF THE
DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 200

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
QUTGO

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Company confinues to envisage and
implement energy conversion meosures in
various manufacturing operations leading
fo savings in quaniitative consumption of
power, fuel, oil elc.

We have adopted fechnigues for recycling of
filter water and cooling water. Also we have
been using rice husk as fuel of our plant
thus reducing the consumption of coal or off
as fuel thus making us eligible for carbon
credis.

A. Power and Fuel Consumption:

A. Electricity 2010-11 2009-10
Purchased
Units 21156044 1966059

Total Amount (Rs) 10678535 8530914
Rate Per Unit Rs} 4.98 454

8. Fuels
{Diesel, FO, Burada,
Husk & Turd)
Guantity firs/Kgs) 11318343 9823797
Total Amount [Rs 142550620 39039901
Rote per Unit Rs ) 376 397

Tachnology Absorption

ticense agreement with NRDC for
Liviite

The company has enfered info long term
fease agreement with National Reseorch
and Developmeni Corporation for use of
breakihrough technology developed and
patented by NDR, Karnal for 85% less
cholesterol making premise for launch of
“Dairy Best Livelite”

R & D/ PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

The Company has anin-house R& D/
Product Development Laboratory o develop
clean, hygienic, and healthy products
adhering to best Quality Standards.
Continuous efforls are made to ensure
qudlitative improvement in products ond
efficiency in operations.

Specific Areos in which R & D / Product

Development undertaken
¢ Processing of Fresh Row Mitk.
® Tamper Proof Packaging of
Products.

® Manufacture of desi ghee in
“Doiry Best Liviile” brand
containing 85% less cholesterol
as compored fo the normal ghee
rocrketed across the world.

Senefit Derved
® Enhonced Life of the Products.
® Upgraded Products have aliowed
Compuany to expand its market
share.

® Creation of a niche market for low
cholesterol ghee.

Future plan of aclion
® Devise & develop new healthy
producis.
® Foraying in the fresh Dairy
produdts

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgn:
Total foreign exchonge eared and used:

{Rs. in Lacs)

2010-11 200910

il Earnings - NiL 283.97
{ii} Expenditure :

CiF value ofimports . NIL 73.84

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 1, 2011

for & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Dhingro
Chairmon & Monaging Director



Report on
Corporate
Governance

1. Company’s Philosophy on Cerporate Governance

Gacd Corporate Governance is a set of systerns and practices put in place to ensure that the aﬁcnrs of the Commny are being managed in a way
hat ensures fransparency and accountability. At KDI, we believe that we are the takeholders in the cornpany.

Therefore at KDL we have been practicing the principles of good corporate guvpmance ms;fio SEC ond 'mnsparerm o rnest the aspirations of all

stakeholders. This is demonsirated in high returns for our shareholders and high qudlity producis for our customer’s of most compelitive prices.

Over the years governance processes and systems have been growing strong KDIL not only adheres fo prescribed corporate practices as per
Clause 49 but is constantly striving to adopt best practices emerging in the Industry.

We have taken several inifiafives towards mainfaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance that includes:
- Appointment of Dr. Ratfan Sagar Khanna as independent Director in the Board he is an Authority in the dairy industry in which company
exist and has been providing his valuable inputs on major initiatives faken by the Company.
- The Company has taken various CSR infiatives 1o support and grow the Rural Dairy farmers helping them in improving their quality of life.
»  The Company understands the value of two way communication with shareholders and cther stakeholders thus the Company’s website
www.kdilin has information for all concerned.
A report on complionce with the Code of Corporate Governance as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and incorporated in
the Listing Agreement is given below.

2. Board of Directors

The composition of the Board is in accordance with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, as amended from fime to time. The Company has an
Executive Chairman. The number of Non-Executive Directors is more thon 50% of the total number of Directors. The Non-Executive Directors bring
wide ronge of experience and independent judgments 1o the Board's deliberations and decisions. Mr. Sanjay Dhingra is Execuiive Director of the
Company designated as Managing Director & Chairman of the Company.

The primary role of the Boord is that of, frusteeship o protect and enhance sharehoiders’ value through strategic supervision of company’s
operations. The Board also provides direction and exercises appropriate confrol fo ensure that the Company fulfilis the stakeholders’ aspirations
and societal expeciations.

Composition of The Board

As on March 31, 201, total number of Directors of the Company was three comprising of one Executive Director and two Non-Executive &
independent Directors. While on 18th April 2011, Mr. Sidhant Gupta was added as an Executive Birector bringing with him o lot of energy and
fresh perspective for the growth of company.

Tre name and categories of the directors on the Board, their attendance af the board meeling held during the year and the number of
directorship and committee chairmanship/membership held by them in other companies is given below.:

Name of the Category Designation | Board Meeting | Attendance | Number of Number of other
Director attended at last Directorship committee
during the year | AGM in other Public | membership
Company
As As
Chairman | Member
1. Sanjay Dhingra Executive Chairman & 23 Yes NiL NiL NIL
Direclor Managing
Director
2. Gulshan Dhingra®* | Non Executive Director 15 Yes NiL NiL NiL
Director
3. Mr. Arun Srivastava | Non Executive Director 23 Yes NiL NiL NiL
‘ Director
4 Rojeev Sharma** | Non Executive Director 6 : NIL NiL NiL NiL
- Director
5. Dr. Roffon Non Executive ~ | Director 7 YES NIt NiL NiL
SagarkKhanna*** Independent
~ Direclor

* Mr. Guishan Dhingra resigned from the post of directorship with effect from Novemnber 24, 2010.
“*Mr. Rajeey Sharma resigned frony the past of directorship with effect from Moy 18, 2010
Dy, Rattan Sagarkhanna was appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect from May 18, 2010. 26



Director’s
Profile

Shri Sanjay Dhingra is a graduate by education but has exceptiondl leadership & business acumen. He has joined the Board of KDIL in 2003
and inifiated transformation of the company that has accumulated losses of Rs.20 Crores by the fime to now Rs. 1600 Crores revenue Company
with profits and giving dividend to its shareholders for past five years.

He has grass root level experience in FMCG industry that helps in identifying the areas of growth and opportunity for the company. He has been
instrumental in various initiatives of the compaony that has helped KDIL to achieve various milestones in such short period of 8 years under his
leadership.

He is Promoter of the Company and holds 50,000,000 shares of the company in his name as on 31st March 2011

Shri Sidhant Gupta is MBA Finance} by qualification and is very energetic and flarmboyant personality. He has a rub off effedt of energy
whenever he is around. He has joined the Board of KDIL recently in April 2011 but has dlready given fresh growth perspeciives to the company
including the initiative to incorporate foreign subsidiary to expand the company’s global footprint.

He is alse instrumental in putting the company’s fund raising activity on fast frack fo implement the expansion plans of the company.
He does not hold any shares of the Company

Dr. Rottan Sagar Khanna is a Director General of M/s Ganesh Scientific Research Foundation New Delhi. He is M.Sc. {Hons) from Punjab Agri
University. He is Diploma holder in Semen Freezing Gynaecology & Anthology from Royal Veterinary and Agriculiure University, Copenhagen,
Diplora in Farm & Science Journalism from institute of Farm & Science Journalisrn, New Delhi. He has joined the Board of KDIL in May 2010.

Or. Rattan Sagar Khanna has around 40 years of experience in Dairy, Farming and in Agriculture Sector. His stints include Consultant of Depart-
ment of Animal Husbandry, Fisheries & Veterinary Services, Chief Executive Officer Animal Feeds Business in Dabur Ayurvet Limited., Advisor fo
the GCMMF, General Manager in Guiarat Co-operative Milk Marketing Federation, New Dethi, Managing Director of Rajasthan Co-operative
Dairy Federation, Joipur, Resident Representative (Northern Region] of National Dairy Development Board, New Delhi, and Head Projecis) of
indian Dairy Corporation, Baroda. Dr. Rattan Sagar Khanna has an impressive track record of having memberships & chairmanships of various
Dairy Associations. At present he is Director General of M/s Ganesh Scientific Research Foundation New Delhi, Chief Executive of the Trust,
Consultant of Namastey India Foods, Kanpur, Coundil Member and Consultant of Gerson Lehrman Group, New York, USA, Vice Choirmaon &
Consultant of Centre for Institute of Animal Husbandry and Dairy Development, Noida, Member, Research Advisory Council, World Buffalo Trust,
Noida.

He has been providing his valuable inputs on major initiatives faken by the Company as well as the technologies infroduced in the Company. He
was instrumental in intfroduction and launch of our anchor Brand “Dairy Best Liviite”. He has been the guiding force in company’s CSR inifiatives
since he was inducted in the Board and also in implementation and establishment of collection centers and MCC’s of the Company.

His long experience with the Dairy Industry has become a valuable asset for the company.

He does not hold any shares of the company.

Shri Arun Srivastava is a graduate by profession but has wide experience with regards fo Liasioning with Banks and Financial insfitutions. He
joined the Board of KBIL on 25th June 2003,

He hos provided his valuable inpus and consultation fo Beard time and again and has been serving on varicus comrmitees of board helping
the management in performing smooth funclioning.

He does not hold any shares of the company.
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Director’s
Profile

None of the-Non Executive Direcior of the Company has any material pecuniary relationship or fransaction with the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company is a member in more than ten commitiees or acls as a Chairman of more than five Commitiees, as
specified in clause 49 across all public companies in which he is Director. The Company is notified by Directors, from fime to time, stalus of
commitiee position he occupies in other companies.

The Board meets at regular intervols and a defoiled agenda is sent 1o each Direclor prior fo the Board and Commilfee Meetings. During the
financiol Year 2010-11, Twenty three Board Mesatings were held and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. The dates of
such Boord meefing were:

Date of Board Meetings
06/04/2010 15/04/2010 19/04/2010 30/04/2010 07/05/2010
18/05/2010 28/05/2010 17/06/2010 12/07/2010 20/07/2010
12/08/2010 26/08/2010 30/08/2010 22/09/2010 05/10/2010
04/11/2010 15/11/2010 26/11/2010 28/12/2010 14/01/201
1470272001 0570372011 30/03/2011

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meefing:

Mr. Arun Srivastavo, aged 38 years, is having an experience of over eight years liaisoning work with banks and other Financial Institutions.
He has been on the Board of Directors of the Company since 2003. He has provided the services to the board with regard to banking and
finance.

Other Directorship . Nil
Commitiee Memberships of other Cos  : Nil
No. of shares held in the Company : Nil
3. Audit Committee:

The Board has constituted an Audit Commiffee in accordance with the requirements of section 2924 of the Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49
of the Listing Agreement entered with the stock exchanges. Statutory Auditors and Infernal Auditors were regular invitees to the commitiees
meefings.

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee.

Scope/term of Reference of Audit Committee

The terms of reference/powers of the Audit Committee has been specified by the Board of Directors in consonance with clause 49 ofthe Listing
Agreement, which infer alia includes

1) Oversight of Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information o ensure that the financial stalements are
correct, sufficient and credible.

2)  Reviewing with the management the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission fo the Board of Directors focusing
primarily on:
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i Ay chae@ées in arcounting policies and proct
# Maior cccourting entries based on exerdise of judgment by monagerment,
il Significant adjustments arising out of audit,
W The going concern assumption and cornpliance with accounting standards
v} Complionce with stock exchange and legal requiremens concerning francied statements,
Vit Anyrelojed porty ransaclions Le, ransadciions of the Company of material nature, that may have potentiol
vill  Confiict with the inferest of the company atfarge.
3] Reviewing with the reanagement, stafutory and infernal Auditors, the adegquacy of infernal control system
41 Recommending the appoiniment and removal of stohutory auditors, and terms of remuneration.
5 Discussing with the infernat audiors any significant findings and follow-up thereon,

&) Discuss with the siatutory Auditors before the Audit commences, abiout the nature and scope of audit as well as post audit disc
area of concem.

71 Reviewing the company's financial and risk manogement policies.
8) Carrying out such other function as may be specifically referred to the commitiee, by the Board of Directors.
Minutes of Meefing of Audit Commitiee where circulaled in the Board maefing.

The compasition of the Audi Commitiee and parficulars of meefings atiended by the members of the Commitiee are given below:

e |
Name of Director No. of Meeting Held | No. of Meeting attended |

Mr. Arun Srivastava Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Gulshan Kumar* Non Executive Director -
Mr. Rajeev Sharma** ‘ | Non Executive Independent Director '
Dr. Rattan Sagar Khanna***| Non Executive Independent Director

Mr. Sanjay Dhingra**** Executive Director

* Mr. Guishan Dhingru resigried from the post of directorship with effect from November 24, 2010,

e Rajeev Sharma resigned from the post of directorship with effect from May 18, 2010,

se5yr Ratian Sagarkhanne was appoinied as Additionat Director of the Company with effect from of May 18, 2010
wres Me Sanjay Dhingra was appointed as member of Audit Committes with effect frorn November 26, 2010

During the year, Six Commiliee Meetings were held. Dates of Committee meetings were as follows:

27/07/2010 28/08/2010

28/01/200 25/03/2001

30/04/2010
25/10/2010

4. Remuneration Commitiee

The Remuneration commitiee was constituted by the Board fo recommend & review Remuneration package for Executive Directors including

pension rights ond ony compensation payment, during the year. The Committee comprises of three Direclors.

No-of Masfing Fild
Mr.ERnieevshc(md*\ . .

Non Executive Independent Director

Non Executive Director

No. of Meeting attended
; :
Mr. Gulshan Kumar**

Mr. Arun Srivastava Non Executive Independent Director
Dr. Rattan Sagar Khanna***| Non Executive Independent Director

_ Mr. Sanjay Dhingra**** Execufive Director

2
2
2
2

1
2
*Ayr. Rajeey Sharma resigned from the post of di ship with effect from May 18, 2010,
* vy, Gulshan Dhingra resigned from the post of direciorship with effect from November 24, 2000

, w0y, Ratian Sagar Khanna was appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect from of May 18, 2010,
29 s My Sanjay Dhingro was appointed as member of Remuneration Commifiee wilh effect from November 26, 2010




19/04/2010 31/03/2011

The Deiails of Remuneration during the year ended 31st March 2011 as foliows:-

Name Gross Remuneration Sitting Fees Total

Mr. Sanjay Dhingra
(Managing Director) 24,00,000 NIL 24,00,000

Remuneration paid fo Non-Executive Directors comprises of sitting fee only.
&. Sharsholder’s / Investor’s Grievance Redressal Committee

The Shareholders’ and investors’ Grievance Redressal Committee has been constituted as per the provisions of listing agreement.

The Sharehoider/investor Grievances Commitiee of the Company functions under the Chairmanship of Dr. Ratian Sagar Khanna, Non-Executive
Independent Director and comprises following Directors:

mcmes _l Category

1. M Gulshan Kumar® Non Executive director

1 Mr Arun Srivastava Non Executive Independent Director

2. N Rajeev Sharma** Non Executive independent Director

3.  Dr Raffan Sagar Khanna*** Non Executive Independent Director

4. Mr. Sanjoy Dhingra**** Executive Director _—‘

* Mr. GuishanDhingra resigned from the post of directorship with effect from November 24, 2010,

**Mr. Rajeev Sharma resigned from the post of directorship with effect from May 18, 2010

“0y, Rottan Sagarkhanna was appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect from May 18, 2010,

e My Sanjoy Dhingra was appoinied as member of Sharehiolder's / investor's Gievance Redressal Committee with eftect from November 26, 2010.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Compliance Officer for the purpose of Shareholders'/ investors’ Grievance Redressal Committee.
The Terms Of Reference Of The Shareholder And Investors Grievances Redressal Commitiee Are As Under:

1. Review complaints of shareholders and aclion fuken thereon.

2. Look into all securities filing every quarter.

3. Monitor implementation and compliances of company’s Code of Conduct.

Composition of Shareholders/ Investors Grievances Committee and details of meeting cifended by members for financial year 2009-10 are given
below:

Name of Director Category No. of Meeting No. of Meeting
Held attended
1. Mr. Gulshan Kumar Non Executive director 4 3
2. Mr. Arun Srivasiava Non Executive Independent Director 4 4
t 3. Mr. Rajeev Sharma Non Executive Independent Director 4 1
6. Dr. Rattan Sagar Khanna* Non Executive Independent Director 4 3
7. Mr. Sanjay Dhingra** Executive Director 4 1

*Dr. Rottan Sagar Khanna was appointed as member of Shareholder And Investors Grievances Redressal Committee with effect from May 18, 2010.
** Mr. Sanjay Dhingra was appointed as member of Shareholder And Investors Grievances Redressal Committee with effect from November 26, 2010

During the financial year 2010-2011, The Committee met 4 fimes. The commitfee Meetings was held on the following dates 29/04/10, 10/08/10,
12110 and 12/02/1.

7. Share Transfer Commities

Share Transfer Commitlee was constituted under listing agreement and agreement with RTA for approval of iransfer.

The Commitfee consists of Chairman Dr. Raftan Sagar Khanna, and members Mr. Arun Srivastava and Shri Sanjay Dhingra. The Share Transfer
Commitfee meets on forinightly basis and overseas the performance of Share Transfer Agents ond review all matters connecied with fransfer of
shares.

As on date, there are no shares pending for fransfer received during the year under review.
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Nome, Designation and Address of Compliance Officer:

Ms. Deepa Kapoor,

Complionce Officer

KDIL House

§ - 82, Shivaji Place, Rojouri Garden,

New Deihi - 110027

Ph: 011-47006500 {100 fines)

8. Code of Business Conduct And Ethics for Directors ond Senior Management:

The company has adopled a comprehensive code of conduct for its direciors and senior managemant, which loys the standard of business
conduct, ethics and governance. The code has been circulated to ofl members of the board and senior management and they have affirmed
complionce of same.

A declaration fo this effect signed by the Managing Director is appended af the end of this report.

9. General Body Meetings

il General Mesfings:

The particulars of the fast three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as under:
25&%20?6 . 27.09.2010 ( HooAM Village Softa, Tehsil Palwdl,
* . Faridabad, Haryana
20{}34009 30092009 nooAM Viliage Softa, Tehsil Palwal
Faridobad, Haryano
2007-2008 30.09.2008 TLO0 AM. l Village Softo, Tehsil Polwal,

Faridabod, Horyana
{ii} Special Resolution:

Following Special Resolutions were passed af the last AGM last year.
1. Amendmernt of Articies of Association to provide for increased sitling fees of non-executive directors.

9 Consent o raise funds for further expansion plans of the company for the Amount Rs. 10000 Million.
No Speciol Resolution was passed in previous Two AGMs.
il Detaii of Resolutions passed last year through Postal Ballot:
During the year ended March 31, 2011 the company sought approval fom iis shareholders for possing special and Ordinary resolution through

the process of Postal batlet In accordance with provisions of section 1924 of fhe Companies Act 1956 read with the companies [possing of the
Resolufion by Postal Ballot) Rules 2001, The declared results of the Postal Ballot were announced through newspapers and were also displayed

on the website of the company.www.kdilin. Deiails of the same are given below.

Resolutions passed on November 26, 2010 (Nofice dated October 05, 2010}

| Particulors

Details/Dates
Ociober 5, 2010

Date of Board Meeiing
Mr Vinee! Kumar

: '2 Scrutinizer appointed by the BOD ot ifs Meeting
- - Chaudhary, FC5, PCS

Date of Notice Seeking share Holders approval Ociober 5, 2010
Date of Completion of Dispotich of Notice Ocicber 23, 2010

Date of Declaration of Resuli : November 26, 2010

o
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Particulars of Resolutions Passed-

Speciol

lT | Shiffing of Registered Office from Stote of Haryana to National Capital Territory of Delhi ‘

Ordinary

‘1. I Nl ___J

Voting Paftern

Paticular Total Valid Votes Cast Total Valid Votes Cast Total Valid Votes Cast

in favour in the Resolution | against the Resolution

Resolution 1 153893252 153891148 2104

10. Disclosure

1.

]

it}

{iii)

{iv}

0]

(i)

(iid)

{iv}

Disclosure on materially significant Related Parly Transactions:
Disclosure regarding related party transactions have been made under Notes to Accounts, which form part of this Annual Report

None of the transactions of Company of material nature, with its promoters and their relatives, the directors or the management and
iheir relotives or any other reluted parties were in conflict with the inferest of the Company.

Disclosure on non-complionce on any matter related to capital markets during lost three years:

No penalties ond sirictures have been imposed on the Company by SEBI or Stock exchange or any other Statutory Authority on any
maiter related fo capital markets, as there was no non-compliance in general,

The Company is pursuing for listing of 50,000,000 equity shares of Re. 1/-each with The Bombay Stock Exchange Lid, Mumbai.
Disclosure of Accounting treatment

There has not been any significant change in the accounting policies during the year.

Board disclosure — Risk Management

The Company has a policy fo inform the Board about Risk Management, Risk assessment & Minimization procedure. The Board of
Directors periodically review risk management framework of the company.

The Company Has Complied With All Mandatory Requirements And Has Adopted Non Mandatory Requirement As Per
Detail Given Below:

Remuneration committee

The company has constituted Remuneration committee. Chairman of the committee is an independent director and was present af the
Last Annual General Meeting.

Shareholder rights

Quarterly financial resulls of the company are published in newspapers and also displayed on website of the company. The results are
not separately circulated fo the shareholders.

Training to Board members
At present the company does not have such a fraining programme for the Board members.
Mechanism for evaluating non executive Board members

The company has not adopied any mechanism for evaluating Non Executive Directors.
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{v)

Whistle blower policy

The Company does not have any whistle blower policy as of now but no personnel is being denied any access fo the Audit Committee.

12. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

in compliance with the requirements of listing Agreement, the Company regularly inlimates unaudited as well as audifed financial
resulis 1o the Stock Exchange immediately after they are taken on record by the Board. These financial results were published in the
leading newspapers which included The Financial Express, Jan Satta and Economic Times. The same were sent fo Stock exchange and
were also displayed on the website of the Company, www.kdiLin.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report has been attached to the Director's Report and forms part of this Annua! Report.

13. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

{i)

(i)

19th Annual General Meeting:
Date September 26, 2011
Time TAM

Venue  Village Sofia, Tehsil Palwal,
Faridobad, Haryana-121004

Financial Colendar
The Financial year covers the period from 1st April to 31st March.

Key Financial Reporting Dates for the Financial Year 2011-12:

Ist Quarter ehding 30-06-2011 On or before August 15, 2011 ]
2nd Quarter ending 30-09-201 On or before November 15, 2011

3rd Quarter ending 31-12-2011 On or before February 15, 2012

4th Quarter ending 31-03-2012 On or before May 15, 2012 or if audited, on or before May 30, 2012

(i)

liv)

{v)

(i}

Date of Book Closure

September 22, 2011 to Sepiember 26, 2011 Both days inclusive)

Dividend payment Date

The Final Dividend recommended of 0.10 per share of 1 each, the Company has fixed September 22, 2011 1o September 26, 2011 {both
days inclusivel as the Book Closure dates and Dividend shall be poid after shareholders’ approval of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

Listing on Stock Exchanges

Equity shares of the Company are currently listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai. The Company has paid annual listing
fees for the year 2010-11. Also the Company's application for fisting of its shares on National Stock Exchange of India Limited has been
accepted and the shares of the company are now listed of NSE since 5th July 2011 with Symbol KWALITY and ISIN ~ INE775B01025.
Script Code

BSE — 531882
NSE — INE775B01025



{vii) Market Price Data And Performance in Comparison To Index
The High and Low of Share price of the Company during each monih in lost financial year of BSE were as under:

Face value of each Share isRe 1)

High 1} Low {! Volume

733 s
90
July 2010 914 80.1
August 2010 94.9 82
1075 851
s 7o
131 98 9019226
December 2010 1242 98 8783410
January 2011 187 7937127
112.45 8496984
135,85 15575482

{viii} Registrar and share Transfer Agents

M/s Skyline Financial Services Private Uimited,
D -153/4, Ist Floor, Okhla Industriol Area,
Phase §, New Delhi -110020

Tel No. : 011-26812682-83

Fax No. : 011-26292681

E-mail : admin@skylinerta.com

{ix} Share Transfer Systems:
The shares in physical mode received for ransfer are transferred expeditiously subject fo completion appropricte regulaiory formalifies.
Confirmations in respect of the requests for dematerialization of shares are expeditiously sent o the respeciive depositories i.e. NSDL
and COSL

ix] Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 200

No. of Shares No. of Shareholders No. of Equity Shares
— Total % of Share-Holders Total
501000 50 ~
755 w600

2001-3000 133 119 334281 016

3001-4000 1038 928 3563687 175

4001-5000 59 0.53 270030

5001-10000 27 242 1622600

10001 & above | 245 218 192767956 94.87
Total 11188 100.00 203186434 | 100.00
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ixi} SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

The shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2011

e S
. held Shareholding

| Shorehotding of Promoler and Prometer Groop | [ |

.. = e omn

e - '

. - e

e

Public Shareholding .
e 0
a
FHnandial Instifutions/Banks ‘ m
Foreign Institutional Invesiors
id} | Any Other (Trust} ' ‘
| | Sub Total
{21 | Non-instilutions
e ‘
oy -
. s @ @ =
.
-

i oc .
| | sub Total ' 50632075 24.92

| 50845720
e, 10000

e

o=

203186434

{xii) Detuils of Directors Appointing and Re-appointing ot AGM

- e o
Dot o Appomert

Qualification B.Com Hons) & Graduate
. MBA [Finance) 7
. & Managemen; Financial Instifutions

Direclorship held in other Companies as on dafe. Nil
N ‘

Chairman/Member of the committee of the Chairman of Audit Commitiee,
Soard of Direciors of the Company as on Member of Remuneration
31 March 2011 Commitiee, Shareholders/invesiors
| Grievance Redressal Committee
and Share fransfer Commitiee.

Nl | :
- = = = s =
St o w0 ]

Board governance and and Nomination Commillee —
Corpemsalon CommilssRemuneraton Commites |~ IC
e . 1 W :

Chairman/Mernber of the commitiee of the
Diractor of the other companias in which he is
a direclor as on 31 March 2011
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{xiii) Dematerialization of equity shares and liquidity

The shares of the cornpany are in compuisory demat segrent and are available for frading in the both depository system, ie. NSDL
and CDSL. As on 31st March 2011, 71 86 % of the Company’s total Listed capital representing 146008333 share were held in dematerial-
ized form and the balance 28.14% comprising 57178101 shares were held in physical form.

Under the depository system, the Infernational Securities identification Number §SIN) altotted 1o the Company is INE775801025.
{xiv} Quistanding ADR’s/GDR’s/Warrants/Convertible Instruments

Not Applicable
{xv} Registered office & Plant Location

Kwality Dairy {india} Limited
Village Softa, Tehsil Palwal,
Distt. Palwal,

Haryana - 121004

{xvi} Address for correspondence

The Company Secretary

Kwality Dairy {indial Limited

KDIL House

F-82, Shivaji Place, RajouriGarden,

New Delhi - 110 027

Tel No. : 011-47006500 (100 lines)

Fax No. : 01125191800

Designated exclusive e-mail for investors: investor@kdil.in
Website: www.kdil.in

Any shareholder complaints/queries may be addressed to:
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

M/S. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

D - 153/A, Ist Floor, Okhla industrial Areq,

Phase |, New Dethi - 110020

Tel No. : 011- 26812682-83

Fax No. : O11- 26292681

E-mail : admin@skylinerta.com
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Certificate by Chief Executive Officer on compliance with the conditions of
Corporate Governance under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement{s}

The Board of Directors
Kwality Dairy {india) Limited

We hereby certify that for the Financial Year 2010-1%:

1.

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement and that fo the best of our knowledge and belief : -

a. These statemenis do not confain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain sfatements that might be mislead-
ing; .

b. These stolements together present a frue and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable lows and regulations.

There are no fransactions entered info by the Company which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company’s code of conduct fo the best of
our knowledge and belief.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control
systems of the Company and we have disclosed to auditors and Audit Committee those deficiencies, of which we are aware, in the design
or operation of the infernal control systerns and that we have tuken the required steps to rectify these deficiencies.

We further cerlify that: -

a. there have been no significant changes in infernal conirol during this year.

b. there have been no significant changes in accounting policies during this year.

¢. there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, of management or an
employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system.

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 1, 201 Sanjoy Dhingra

Chairman & Managing Director

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

As per the requirernents of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for its
Board of Directors and Senior Management.

|, Sanjay Dhingra, Managing Director of the Company, hereby confirm that the compliance of this Code of Conduct by myself and other members
of the Board of Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel as affirmed by them individually, for the year ended 31st March, 2011

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 1, 2011 Sanjay Ohingra
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENTS

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
To the members of
Kwality Dairy {india) Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Kwality Dairy {indial Lid. for the year ended 31st March 2011, as
stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said company with the sfock exchanges.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to procedures
and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the canditions of Corporate Governance. # is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

in our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as slipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Agreementis).

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the offairs of the Company.

For PP Mukerjee & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 023276N

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 1, 2011 P P Mukerjee
Proprietor
Membership Number: 089854
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Management Discussion & Analysis

Management Discussion and Analysis detailing the Company's objeciives and expeciations is o "forward looking sfatement” within the meaning
of applicable securifies lows and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied depending upon globol ond
indian demand-supply conditions, changes in Government regulafions, tax regimes, aconomic developments within India ond overseas.

industry Structure And Development

The dairy industry plays an important role in the socio-economic development of India. The dairy indusiry in indio is instrumental in providing
cheap nutriional food to the vast population of Indio and also generates huge employment opportunities for people in rural places.

The mgin airn of National Dairy Development Board INDDBJ s fo accelerate the pace of dairy development in the country and attract new
invesimenis.

India is o wonderland couniry for investors looking for invesiment opporiuniiies in the dairy industry. The dairy industry holds great polential for
investment in India and promises high returns to the investors.

There are different sectors within the dairy indusiry that promise great business investment opportunifies as the indion coltie vield less mitk as
compared 1o their foreign counterparis. The Indian catile breeders are looking for ways io improve milk yield through improved breeding
practices. Thus, there is a huge potential ovailable for foreign investors to invest in dairy sector for breeding of high-quality buffaloes os well as
cows. There is also great scope for investment in mitk based value added food products through biotech interventions particularly the infroduc-
fion of dairy biologics, enzymes, pro-biotics, coloring and flavoring materials for food processing. Producing bio-preservative ingredients based
on dairy fermentation, such as pediococcin, aciophilin, bulgarican, and Nisin contained in doiry powder, present a great promise as invesiment
opportunity.

Thus, the dairy industry in India has huge investment opporiunities in o variety of sectors. The investors are oll set to gain profitable refurns on
their investment.

Guality & Food Safety Policy
The Company being an SO 90012000, HACCP-IS: 15000 and Agmark approved company, the Company’s Quality Policy is: -

“Company is commitied fo monufaciure and supply nutritional and safe products fo satisfy customer requirements by a motivated feam using
eco-friendly measures with confinual improvement in quality and food safety”

The Company has consistently shown quality improvement with regard o various processes, keeping strict control on deviglions. Customer
complaints are resolved using laid down systerns of quaiity assurance. Several initictives are being token to further improve customer safisfoction
in consonance with the Company's quality policy.

tinancigl Performance

During the year, your Company has scaled new heights and sef several new benchmarks in ferms of sales, profits, networth and ossets.
Turnover for the year was Rs. 160803.62 against Rs.105412.45 crore in the previous year, reflecting o growth of 52.5%.

Profit after tax, for the year was Rs. 45 94crore as against Rs. 17.94 crores for the previous year, registering an increase 0f 156.52%.
Opportunities & Threats
Sirengths and Opportunifies:

s Great potentiol for export of milk producis.

« Estoblished and expanding domestic market for dairy producis.

s Increasing demand for fiuid milk as well as value odded Produds.

« By product Utilization for import substitution.

s Huge Employment generation & opportunities for Self employment,
e Uberalized Government policies in dairy secior.
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s Availabiiity of large resources of unconventional feeds and fodders for Dairy owners.

o Availabiiity of diverse germplasmof dairy catile and buffaloes that have unique features like heat tolerance, disease resistance, draft
ability and ability fo survive, breed andproduce under stress conditions.

»  Availability of animal production fechnologies for fuster development and effective implementation.

e integrated structure for marketing of milk and mitk producis.

* Integraied structure for livesiock markeling through regulated markets.

s Market information inteliigence system for milk and milk producis.

Weaknesses and Threats:

s Enfry of Mulii Naotional Companies manutacturing dairy products in Domestic market

« Increasing chemical contaminants as well as residual antibiotics in mitk.

»  Poor microbiological quality of milk.

= incentive on expon of quality feed ingredients particularly cokes.

»  Deficiency of molasses, a rich source of energy and binding agent in feed industry and constifuent of urea rnolosses mineral lick.

s Excessive grazing pressure on marginal and small community lands resuliing in comiplete degradation of land.

»  Exiinclion of the indigenous breeds of cattle due fo indiscriminate use of crossbreeding prograrnme o enhance milk production.

¢ The liberalization of the Dairy industry is likely fo be exploited by multi-nationals. They will be inferested in manufacturing milk producis
which yield high profits. it will create milk shortage in the country adversely affecting the consumer.

The analysis also shows that the ‘strengths’ and ‘opportunities’ far outweigh ‘weaknesses’ and ‘threats’. Strengths &opportunities are fundamen-
tal and weaknesses & threats are transitory.

Segment Wise / Product Wise Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture, purchase and sales of a wide range of Dairy producis fike ghee, skimmed
mitk powder, curd, whole milk powder, dairy whitener, lactose and mitk. The income from these activities and export of dairy products is not
materially significant in financial terms. Accordingly segment information has not been disclosed

Risk And Concerns

The major risk and concerns attributed to the performance of the company are:

a.  Although the export sales are less in comparison to domestic sales, fluctuation in foreign exchange rates and international prices of dairy
producis may influence the performance of the company.

b.  increase in input costs, change in tox struciure, change in inferest rates, changes in Government policies/ laws of land, development and
stability of Indian econorny against the negative external and internal forces may also impact the overdli performance of the company.

¢.  Profitability may be affected on account of competition from existing and prospective manufaciurers of the company’s producis.

d. Dairy business is primarily influenced by monsoon. Unfavorable monsoon may affect the milk availability.

Adequacy Of Internal Control Systems

The Company has in place the proper and adequate systems of infernal confrols. Such internal controls are according 1o the nature of ifs
business and size of its operations, in order fo ensure that all assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposifion and that
all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly and adequately.

The performance of the Company is regularly reviewed by the Audit Commitiee and/or the Board of Directors to ensure that it is in consonance
with the overall corporate policy and in ine with pre-set objectives. The Audit Committee of the Board is headed by ¢ non-executive independent
Director and all audit findings are reported on a quarterly basis to it.

Human Resource Development

Being o manufacturing Company, workers form an important link in the chain of growth. The Company maintained a cordial relationship with its
personne! during the year under review. The workers are motivated with better service conditions, which is af par with the best in the industry.

During the year under review, the Company had undertaken extensive steps for optimizing the use of its manpower through, producivity
improvement, and role enrichment. There is a continuous focus on enhancing produddivity in alf facets of our operations.



industrial Relations

The indusirial relations in the Company with ihe workers af ail levels are very cordiol ond are expecied to remain cordial in future as well. The
Management acknowledges the contribution of all employees in increasing ifs lurnover manifolds.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is presently operating four Milk Chilling Centres [MCCs} in Haryana, each cendre covers about 100 village spread over 8-10
procurement routes. Each village level milk collection point has 80-90 farmers pouring milk. Fach centre generates avenues for eaming livelihood
for about BOOO farmers, thus bringing economic uplifiment in the areo.

The Company organizes various animal heolth and fertifity camps and village meetings regularly to discuss the requirernents of the formers and
fulfiling the needs for Vaccination, Al, Catfle feed and facilifating the foan requirements of the farmers through financial instifutions. Further these
camps also educate the farmers on the general quality of life improvement and hygienic living standards alongwith other social issues. The mitk
procurement team broadly advises and provides guidelines to the participating farmers as unden

Animal Healih: In order o increase the milk productivity, the velerinarions of the Company based in the rural areas look affer the health of the
animals, and advise the farmers on latest proctices of livestock diseases, heatth and management.

Artificial Insemination (All: The docior olso takes care of Al needs of the farmer’s animals. Semen and facilities for arfificial insemination are
procured from the best and the reputed sources producing semen in india.

Cotile Feed: The Company provides good quality and balanced catile feed of cost price to foke care of nutrition needs of the animals.

EMD vaccination: An annual FMD vaccingtion prograrn is orgonized for vaccination of animals to protect thern against Foot and Mouth disease.
The vaccinations are done at subsidized cost

Disclaimer Statement
Statements in fhis reporf deseribing the current industry siruciure, outlook, opportunities efc. reflect the assessment and perception of the
Company, which are based on ceriain assumptions, and expectalions of fulure evenis. The Company cannot guaraniee ihat these assumplions

and expeciations are accurate. The Company's actual results, performance, or achisvernenis could thus differ materially from those projecied in
any such forward-looking statements.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
KWALITY DAIRY (INDIA} LIMITED

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Kwality Dairy india) Limited , as af 31st March 2011 and also the Profit and Loss Account for the
yeor ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial stafements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinicn on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducied our audit in cccordance with ouditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and perform
the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stotements are free of materiol missiatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the account-
ing principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides o reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report} Order, 2003,as amended by the Companies {Auditor's reporti amendment Order 2004 issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub- section [4A] of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of such checks of
the books and records as we considered appropriate and according fo the information and explanation given fo us , we set out in the Annexure
o stafement on the matters specified in Paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order to the extent apglicable to the Company.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

{i} We have obfained all the information and explanations, which to best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

{ii} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our exarmination of
those books;

(i} The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account.

fiv)  Inour opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report comply with the Accounting Standards referred
fo in sub-section {3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

)  Onthe basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2011 and taken on record by the Board of Direciors,
we report that none of the direciors is disqualified as on 31st March 201 from being appointed as a director in terms of clouse (g} of
sub-section {1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

v} In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according fo the explanations give o us, the said accounts give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India:
al  inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 201%; and
bl inthe cuse of the Profit and Loss Account of the Profit for the year ended on that date.
¢} Inthe case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For BP Mukerjee & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Ne. 023276N

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 1, 2011 B P Mukerjee
Proprietor
Membership Number: 089854
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5al

5b)

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT OF KWALITY DAIRY (INDIA) LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 201

The Company has generally maintoined proper records showing full particulars including quantifative details and situation of fixed
assets.

All the assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification of
its fixed osseis in a phased manner which, in our epinion, is reasonable having regard fo the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noficed on such verification,

During the year, the Compary has not disposed off a substantial part of the fixed assefs. Baosed on the information and explanaion
given by the managerment and on the basis of audit procedures performed by us, we are ot the opinion that the sale of the fixed
assels, if any, has not affected the going concern status of the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the managernent. In our opinion, the frequency of verificafion is
reasonable.

The procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relafion o the size
of the Company and the nature of its business.

On the basis of our examination of the records of inverttory, we are of the opinion that the Company is maintaining proper records of
inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material.

The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured , to companies firms or other parfies listed in the register mainfained
under section 301 of the Compaonies Act 1956,

The Company has taken unsecured loans from three companies covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Compa-
nies Act 1956, The maximum amount involved during the year and year end balances of such loons aggregates fo Rs. 6000.00 lacs,
Besides the company has also received amounts under current account from three companies covered in the Register maintainer
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, The maximum amount involved during the year Rs. 174219 Lacs and year end balances
of amount received from such companies were NiL

The Company had faken inferest free loans from the parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies
Act1956. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given fo us, the terms and condifions on which above
mentioned loans have been faken from companies, firms of other porties fisted in the registers maintained under Section 307 of the
Companies Act, 1956, are not, prima fadie, prejudicial to the inferest of the Company.

The Company is regular in repaying the principal amounts as stipulated and has been regular in the payment of interest wheraver
agreed.

There is no overdue amouni of loans received from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section
301 of the Companies Adt, 1956.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nalure of its business with regard fo purchase of inventory and fixed assets and
for the sale of goods and services. During the course of our audil, we have not observed any confinuing failure to correct major
weoknesses in the infernal conirol sysfems.

Based on the audit procedures applied by us and according fo the information and explanations provided by the management, we
are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts or arrangements that need to be entered info the register maintained under Section
301 of the Comparies Act, 1956 have been so entered.

According fo the information and explanations given fo us, the fransactions with parfies with whom transactions exceeding value of
Rs.5 Lac have been entered into during the financial year are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices of the relevant

fime.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has not accepted any deposits covered by



9bl.

18.

the provisions of Sections 58A and 58AA or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Adt, 1956 and the Companies Accepionce
of Deposits) Rules, 1975 and hence the provisions of clause 4 (i of the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to
the Company.

in our opinion, the company has an infernal cudit sysiern commensirote with the size and nature of its business. We recommend
further enlargement of scope and coverage, in view of confinuous growln and expansion.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company in respect of products where, pursuant fo the Rules
made by the Ceniral Goverriment of india |, the maintenance of cost records has been prescribed under clause {d) of sub-section 209 of
the Companies Act, 1956 and are of opinion that prima facle , prescribed accounts and records have been maointained . We have not,
however carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view fo determine whether they are accurale or complele.

According fo the records of the Company examined by us, the Company has been generally reguiar in deposiling with appropriate
autharities undisputed stotutory dues induding, investor educations protection fund, employees’ siate insurance, employees’ provident
fund, ceniral sales tax VAT, wealth tax, service fax, cusiom duty, excise duly, cess and other statufory dues with appropriate authorities.
There have been delays in depositing undisputed Advance Income Tox and the amount outstanding as at the last day of the financial
year for o period exceeding six months from the dote they become payoble , amounts fo Rs 591.88 Lacs (prev year Rs. 467,65 Lacs) .
There were no dues during the year fowards investor Education and Protection Fund and Excise Duty.

According 1o the records of the Company examined by us and according fo the information and explanations given fo us, there are no
dues of income-tox, sales fax, wealth tax, service tox, custom duly, excise duly and cess which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute, except

Forum Where
pending

The company has no accumulated losses ot the end of the finoncial yeor and it has not incurred any cosh losses in the current and
immedioiely preceding financial yeor.

Year fo which
the amount relofes

|
2002-201

Mature of Statule Nature of dues Amount unpaid

Rs in lokhs)
Milk cess 246 60

Harvang Livestock
Development Board,
Gurgaon ’

Sased on our audit procedures and in our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given by the management,
excent for some delays in few cases the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions. The
company has not issued any debenture.

As the Company has not gronted ony loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other
securities the provisions of clouse 4 xii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2003 are not applicable fo the Company.

in our opinion, the Compony is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / sociely, hence the provisions of clause 4 «ifi} of the
Cornpanies (Auditor's Report] Crder, 2003 are nof applicable to the Company

According 1o the information and explanation given fo us , the company is not deating in or frading in shares, securiies, debentures
and other invesiments. Accordingly the provisions of clause xiv of paragraph 4 of the Companis {Auditor's Report] order 2003 {as
amended are not applicable to the Company.

According o the information and explanation given fo us , the Company has not given any guaraniee for loans token by others from
bank o financial institutions.

in our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations furnished fo us, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for
which they were oblained.

According fo fhe information and explanations given fo us and on an overall examinafion of the Balance Sheet of the Company, we
report fhat no funds raised on sheri-term basis have been used for long-term invesiment.

The Company has not made preferentiol allotment of shares fo parties and companies covered in the register maintained undey
Section 301 of the Companies Ac, 1956

As the Company has not issued any debeniures the provisions of dause 4 tix] of the Companies (Aoditor’s Report) CQrder, 2003 are not
applicable to the Company.

a4



20 As the Company has nof raised any money by public issue the provisions relating to end use thereof os per clause 4 xx of the
Companies Auditor's Report Order, 2003 are nof opplicable fo the Company.

21 Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given by the monagement, we report
that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit,

For PP Mukeries & Associates
Chartersd Accountants
Firmy’s Registration No. 023276N

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 1, 2011 B B Mukerjee
Proprietor
Membership Number: 089854
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KWALITY DAIRY (INDIA] LIMITED
SALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.200

Schedule As af As at
March 31,201 March 31,2010
Amount Rs, Amount Rs,
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds A
Share Capital 203,186,434.00 182,000,000.00
Reserves & Surplus 707,296,108.29 910,482,542.29 292,823,905.80 474,823,905.80
LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans B 3,646,428,785.53 1.682,582,130.28
Unsecured Loans c 601,609,328.00 4,248,038 113.53 506,404,189.18 2,188,986,319.46
Deferred Tox Liability 8,487,465.63 5,564,969.00
TOTAL 5167,008,121.45 2,669,375,194 26
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assels D
At Cost 597,440,004.37 322,060,149.38
tess: Accumulated depreciation 178,359,730.80 143,528,711.82
Net book value 419,080,273.57 178,531,437.56
Capital work-in-progress - 419,080,273.57 3,906,252.00 182,437,689.56
Cumrent Assets and Loans & Advances |
Current Assets
Inventories 634,193,826.05 485,758,079.33
Sundry Debtors 417,104,532.16 2,618,024,570.18
Cash & Bank Balonces 15,268,379.26 21,779,016 .99
Other Current Assels 1,471,500.00 1,471,500.00
4,768,038,237.47 3,127,033,166.50
Loans & Advances 370,930,066.01 110,173,951.52
Sub Tolal 5,138,968,303.48 3,237,207.118.02
Less: Current Licbilifies & Provisions F
Current Lichilities 228,033,314.63 615,322,806.22
Provisions 164,937,390.96 134,9446,807.10
Sub Total 392,670,705.59 750,269,613.32
Net Current Assels 4,745 .997,597.89 2,486,937,504.70
Misc. Expenditure
To the extend not written Off 1,930,250.00
TOTAL 5,167,008,121.45 2,669,375,194.26
Significant Accounting Policies and M
notes 1o accounts
As per our Report of even date On Behalf of Board of Directors
FOR PP MUKERIEE & ASSCQCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firmv's Registration No.023276N
{Sidhont Guptal Sanjay Bhingral {Deepa Kapoor)

CA PP Mukeries,
Membership No.:089854
Propriefor

Place  New Delhi
Dated  September 1,201

Executive Direcior

Managing Director

Company Secrefary



KWALITY DAIRY {INDIA) LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.20M

Schedule Year ended Year ended
March 31,2011 March 31,2010
Amount Rs. Amount Rs,
INCOME
Turnover G 16,080,362,099.19 10,541,245,677.78
Other heome H 2,128,353.44 967,566.94
16,082,490,452.63 10,542,213,24472
EXPENDITURE
Material Costs 14,594,312,315. 1 G787 892,660.77
Employee Costs : | 39,155,626.75 21,857,038.00
Other Expenses K 451,749,085.59 230,211,34570
15,085,217,028.05 10,039,960,444 47
Profit before interest, deprediation
and tox{PBIDT) 997,273,424 58 502,252,800.25
Less : Interest and Finance Charges L 356,207.325.77 186,514,326 .53
: Depreciation D 35,292,877 .00 18,261,313.40
Profit before Tax PBT) 605,773,221.81 297.477,160.32
LESS : Provision for Current Tax 143,391,623.00 110,971,735.35
Short Provision for faxes for earfier years {62871} 6,102,802 .96
Wealth Tox 29,297 00 2,212.00

Deferred Tax 2,922,496 .63

146,342,787.92

935,145.00

118,011,895.31

Net Profit for the yeor after Tax PAT) 459,430,433.89 179.465,265.01
Add Brought forward Profit/{Loss} fom Previous 792,823,905.80 137,130,438.19
year's Account
Amount Available For Appropriations - 752,254,339.69 316,595,703.20
Less : Proposed Dividend 20,318,643 .40 20,318,643.40
Tax on Dividend 3,453,154.00 3,453,154.00
Less - issue of Bonus Shares 21,186,434.00 -
BALAMNCE CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 707,296,108.29 292,823,905.80
Basic & Diluted Earning per Share of face value of 226 0.99

Rs 1 each {Prev.YrRs.1/- each)
(Considering Taxation for Previous Years) { Refer Note 9, Schedule M)

Significant Accounting Policies and M
notes fo accounts

As per our Report of even date

FOR PP MUKERIEE & ASSOUIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm's Registration No.023276N
Sidhant Guptal
Executive Director

CAPP Mukerjee,

Membership No..089854

Proprietor

. Place  New Delhi
47 Dated  September 200

On Behalf of Board of Directors

{Sanjay Dhingra)
Managing Director

{Deepa Kapoor)

Company Secrefary



KWALITY DAIRY (INDIA} LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 201

1 The above Cosh Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting
Standard -3 on "Cosh Flow Statement” issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountonis of india.
2 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred 1o in our report of even date.

On Behalf of Board of Directors

FOR P.P. MUKERJEE & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firmy's Regisiration No.023276N

2010-201 2009-2010
Rs. Rs.
A Cash Flow from Operaling Activities -
Net Profit/{Loss) before Tax 605,773,221.81 29747716032
Adiustment for
Prior Period & Exira Ordinary items - -
Depreciation for the year 35,292.877.00 18,261,313.40
{Profifl / loss on sale of Fixed Assels 43,892.00 -
Inferest for the period 356,207,32577 186,514,326.53
Operating Profit before working capitol changes 997,317,316.58 502,252,800.25
Adjustment for changes in Working Capiial :
ncreasel/Decrease in Trade & Cther Receivable {1,759,836,076.47} {973,905,843.93)
fincreasel/Decrease in Inventories 148,435,746 72} {150,543,406.10)
Increase /ldecrease) in rade payable {385,671,052.59} {283,694,191.19)
Cash Generated from operation {1,296,625 55919 {905,910,640.96)
Misc. Expenditure to The Extent not written off {1,930,250.00} -
Taxes Paid (115,048,146 44} 54,022,889 .64}
Net Cash flow from operating Activities {1,413,603,955 .63} {959,933,530.60)
8. Cash flow from investing Activiies -
Advances for Capital Assets {1,684,966.00)
Sale of Assets of Fixed Assets 270,000.00 -
Purchase of Fixed Asseals {272,249, 353 .00} {109,793,607.00)
Net Cosh used in Investing Adlivities {271,979,353.00} 111,478,573.00)
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities :
increase/idecreasel in Secured Loans 1,963,846,655.25 1.080,210,426.72
increose/{decrease) in UnSecured Loans 95,205,138.82 200,800,000.00
inferest {356,207,325.7% 186,514,326.53}
Dividend Paid (20,318,643 40} {18,200,000.00
Tox on Dividend {3,453,154.00} {3,093,090.00}
Net Cash from Financing Activities 1,679,072,670.90 1,073,203,010.19
Netincreuse in Cash or Cash Equivalenis (6,510,637.73) 1,790,906.59
Cash and Cash Equivalent of 1st April, 2010 21,779,016.99 19,988,110.40
Cash and Cosh Equivalent of 31st March, 2011 15,268,379.26 21,779,016.99
Cash und Cosh Equivalents comprise 15,268,379.26 21,779,016.9%
Cash in Hand and on imprest Account 1,087,751.75 88%,852.67
Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Account 5,663,167 .51 7.376,812.02
Balonce with Scheduled Banks in Deposit Account 8,507,460.00 13.512.252.80
Notes :

{Sidhant Guptal
Executive Director

Banjay Bhingra)
Managing Director
CAPP. Mukerjee,

Membership No.:089854

Proprietor

Ploce  New Delhi
Dated  September 1,201

{Deepa Kapoor)
Company Secrefary



KWALITY DAIRY (INDIA} LIMITED

SCHEDULE - A
As af As at
March 31,2011 March 31,2010
Amouni Rs Amount Rs
SHARE HOLDERS FUND
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
100,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each 1,000,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
{ March 31, 2010 : 20,00,00,000 Equity Share of Rs /- each)
issued, Subscribed ond Paid up -
203186434 Equity Shares of Rs.1/- each fully poidup 203,186,434.00 182,000,000.00
Sub-fotal ~ 1 203,186,434.00 182,000,000.00

fal

)

49

Notes

1) Equily Shares of Rs 10/- euch have been sub-divided info len equily shares of Rs.1- each pursuant to the resoltion pussed by the share
holders by postal ballot on 12th Oclober, 2009.
2) The Company alliotted 2,11,86,434 Equily shares as fully paidup bonus shares by capifalisation of profits transferred from profif & loss
account pursuant to resolution passed by share holders by posial ballot on 28th May 2010 to non promoler share holdersinratioof 5: 7.
3) The authorised equity share capiial was increased to 1,00,00,00,000 equity share of Rs. 1/- each persuant to resolution passed by
shareholder's by postal ballot on 7th May, 2010,

RESERVE & SURPLUS
Profit & Loss Account
Sub-otal -8

TOTAL {1+ 1}

SCHEDULE - 8
SECURED LOANS
Short Term / Working Copital Loans
i. From Banks
Rafer Note 11}
ii. Other
Interest Accured on above

Long Term Loan

i Vehicle Loans from Barks
ii. Other
interest Accured on above

3,201,893,649.02

183,333,333.00
1,439,041.00

8,320,296.51
250,000,000.00
1,442,466.00

707,296,108.29
707,296,108.29

910,482,542.29

3,386,666,023.02

259,762,762.51

3,646,428,785.53

Note : Vehicle Loans repayable within one year Rs.34.58 Lacs (March 31,2071 Rs.10.03 Lacs)

SCHEDULE - C
UNSECURED LOANS
Sales Tox Deferment Loan

Refer Note 11 b}
Cthers

Total lo+b)

1,609,328.00

600,000,000.00

601,609.328.00

B

4,248,038 ,113.58

292,823,905.80
292,823,905.80

474,823,905.80

1,580,317,916.74

100,000,000.00
543,699.00

1,720,514.54

1.682,582,130.28

8,904,189.18

4%7,500,000.00

2,188,986,319.46
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SLHEDURE E

As at Asat
March 31,201 March 31,2010
Amount Rs. Amount Rs.

A INVENTORIES:
Row Materials 6,502,600.00 3,963,625.00
Packing & Consumable Stores 10,672,307.00 9,643,383.00
Stock-in-Process £8,956,230.00 50,111,780.00

Finished Goods
Goods-in-iransit {of cost

Sub-total of A

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
Unsecured-Considered good

B Sundry Debtors et of advances)
Over six mnonths
Others
Sub-total of B
C  CASH & BANK BALANCES
al Cash in Hand
b Ralance with schaduled banks -
- It Current Accounts
- In Fixed Deposits Accounts fincluding Interest ocerued)

Margin Money
Sub-total of C

D OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
a Grani-in-Aid receivable

Sub-total of D

Total A+B+CaD

£ LOANS & ADVANCES
Unsecured -considered good

al Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind for voiue fo be received

b Deposit with Haryana Livestock Development Board iMilk Cess)

] Balance with Revenue Authorities
d) Duly Drow Back Receivable

e} Other Deposils

Total

5

528,062,689.05

422,039,291.33

634,193,8626.05

485,758,079.33

513,405.00
4,116,591127.16

519.592.00
2,617,504,978.18

4,117,104,532.16

2,618,024,570.18

370,930,066.01

109775175 889,952.67
5,663,167.51 7,376,812.02
8,507,460.00 12,749,628.79

= 762,623.51
15,268,379.26 21.778,016.99
1,471,500.00 1,471,500.00
1.471,500.00 1.471,500.00
4,768,038,237.47 3,127,033,166.50
359,755,919.18 100,397,095.27
7,296,047.00 7,296,047.00
1,802,109.83 658,545.25
141,984.00 141,984.00
1,934,006.00 1,680,280.00

110,173,951.52



KWALITY DAIRY {INDIA) LIMITED

SCHEDULE F
As ot As ot
March 31,200 March 31,2010
Amount Rs, Amount Rs,

CURRENT LJABILITIES & PROVISIONS

A. Current Licbilities
Sundry Creditors

Other Liabiliies

Sub Total - A
8. Provisions

income Tox ~{ Net of TDS}

217,491,043.06

10,542,271.57

605,924,136.67

9,398,669.55

228,033,314.63

615,322,806.22

137,641,028.56

109.295,968.70

Wealth Tox 28,297.00 2,212.00
Proposed dividend 20,318,643.40 20,318,643.40
Tax on proposed dividend 3,453,154.00 3,453,154.00
Leave encashment/Grotuily 3,495,268.00 1,876,829.00
Sub Total 8 164,937,390.96 134,946,807.10
Total A+ B 392,970,705.59 750,269,613.32
SCHEDULE - G
Yeor ended Year ended
March 31,2010 March 31,2010
Amount Rs Amouni Rs
TUBRNOVER

Sales of Goods
Sales of Services

Export Incentives

SCHEDULE - H

OTHER INCOME
INTEREST INCOME
inferest on FDR

16,024,694,631.19

10,466,869,640.78

{TDS deducted Rs.67742.72/- {Previous yeor Rs. 86124/-])

interest Other

DS deducted Rs. 1014607+ Previous year Bs. Nil/-}}

Misc. Income

105 deducied Rs.42524/- Previous year Rs. 28060/-)

55,667,468.00 74,092,069.00

- 283,968.00

16,080,362,099.19 10,541,245,677.78

669,427.44 687,596.94
1.014,597.00

444,329.00 279,970.00

2,128,353 44 967,566.94
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KWALITY DAIRY (INDIA] LIMITED

SCHEDULE
Yeor ended Year ended
March 31,2001 March 31,2010
Amouni Rs. Amount Rs.
MATERIAL COSTS
Raw Materials Consumed
Consumption of raw material & packing 13,666,144,044 .92 8,253,812,830.51
purchose and contract manufacturing charges 1.073,036,118.50 1,680,777,118.35
Net fincrease} /Decrease in Inventories of work in Process {38,844,450.00} {14,071,764.50)
Net increasel /Decrease in Inventories of finished goods (106,023,397 71 132,626,123.59%

SCHEDULE ~ J N

Employee Cost

Solories, Wages & Bonus

Cortribution o Provident and Other Funds
Grotuity & Leave Encashment

Employee Welfore and other amenities

SCHEDULE - K
OTHER EXPENSES
Power & Fuel
Packing Expenses
Repair & Mainfenance

-Plant & Machinery

- Building
Processing Charges
Consumable Stores
Advertisement & Sales Promotion
Auditors’ Remuneration
Bank Charges
Conveyonce & Travelling
Commission & Brokerage
Charity and Donation
Transportation Charges
Fees & Subscription
Insurance
Legol & Professional Expenses
Rebate & Discount
Royalty Expenses
Misc Expenses
Prinfing & Stationery
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Securily Expenses
Telephone & Celiutar Expenses
Car Running & Maintenance
Loss on sale of Fixed Assels
Exchange Difference

SCHEDULE - L
INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES
Interest on Loans

14,594,312,315.71

$.787,692,060.77

35,208,637.00 20,031,839.00
1.140,796.00 622,373.00
1732,725.00 548,535.00
1.078,468.75 654,291.00
39155,626.75 21,857,038.00
61,229,155.00 47,979,816.00
110,803,067.84 13,641,075.00
13,479,448.30 10,710,388 .49
3,018,189.00 2,105,526.00
74,968 112.00 34,265,709.00
3,486,670.00 2,825,938.00
60,105,874.83 524,303.00
200,000.00 125,000.00
15,013,053.75 20,256,316.60
3,904,831.00 1.156,694.00
5,231,194.50 3,008,242.20
4510100 54,300.00
26,329,691.00 13,612,910.50
4,893,305.00 404,611.00
497,181.00 647,935.00
16,385,118.00 3,372,132.00
35,859,493.91 61,600,561.31
1,549,387.00 1,455,960.00
4,808,904.14 5,016,379 .56
1,537,935.50 463,133.00
2,235,943.00 2,207,789.00
2,415148.00 1,798,036.00
1,469,669.57 1,154,421.04
2,238,720.25 1,770,346.00
43,892.00 -

- 53,823.00

451,749,085.59

230,211,345.70

356,207,325.77

186,514,326.53

356,207,325.77

186,514,326.53




SCHEDULE - M

1

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2010-March B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i)

i}

o

iv

v}

Pestd

vi

Basis of Preparation of Accounts

The finandial statements of the Company are prepared under the historical cost on aocrual basis of accounting in oll materidl respects in
accordonce with the notified accounting stondards by Companies (Accounting Standards) Bules, 2006 {os amended) and the relevont
pravisions of the Companies Adt, 1956. The accounting policies hove been consistently applied by the company and are consistent with
those used in previous year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial stafements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principals requires management o make
estimates and assumption that effect the reported amounis of assets and licbilities and disclosure of confingent iabiiifies ot the dote of
financidl statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates are based upon
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates

Fixed Assels .

Fixed Assets lexcept freehold land which is carried at cost are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
where applicable. Cost includes purchase price and all direct / indirect costs incurred fo bring the assets fo its working condition for its
infended use. Assessment of indication of impairment of an asset is made at the yeor end and impairment loss, if any, recognized.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying ossels are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets.
A qualifying asset is one that necessarlly takes substantial period of time to gef ready for inlended use. Al other borrowing costs are
charged fo revenue in the period in which these are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Sale of Goods

Sale is recognized when the significant risks and rewaords of ownership of the goods have passed to the custormer. Sale comprise
amounis invoiced for goods sold and does not include sales tax/vat or any other tax levied on sales, und are net of sales returns, frade
discounts and rebates.

Income from Services
Revenue from Milk Processing services are recognized as and when services are rendered, and ore accounted for an accrual basis.

Dividend Income
Dividend income from invesiments is recognised when the Company's right 1o receive dividend is established |

interest Income
Inferest Income Is accounted for on a time proportion basis faking info account the armount outstanding and the rate applicable .

Other Income & Expenditure
Other Income & expenditure are accounied for an accrual busis except where the receipt of income is uncerfain in which case itis
accounted for on receipt basis.

Depreciation:
Depreciation on fixed assels have been provided on written down value method of the rates and in the manner prescribed in schedule XV of
the Companies Act, 1956. Assets individually costing Rs.5000/- or less are depreciated fully in the yeor when the assels are putto use.

vii} EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A.

{i

i}

SHORY TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS :
Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense af the undiscounted amount in the profit and loss account for the year in
which employee renders the reloted service,

Post Employment Benefils

Defined Contribution Plans:

Compaony's contdbution to siale governed Provident Fund Scheme & Employees State Insurance Contribution Scheme are charged to the
revenue of the year when the coniribution to the respective fund is due.

Defined benefit plans:

The present value of gratully obligation is determined based on an actuariol valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method .

Actuarial gains and losses arising on such voluolion are recognized immediately .

{iil) Other Defined Plans:

Other long term benefits feave entitlernent} are recognized in o monner similor to defined benefit plans:
Termination Benefils are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

vil} Inventorles :

inventories are valued at the lower of cost, computed on weighted average basis and estimated net realizable value. Cost of
work-in-process and finished goods indudes manufadiuring overheads.



ix

x}

xi

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost of completion and esfimated
cost necessary fo make the sale.

income and Deferred Taxes

income Tax expense comprises of current and deferred fax. Currentincome fax is measured af the amount expecied o be paid fo the
tax authorities in accordance with the Indian income Tax Act . Deferred income faxes reflects the impact of current fiming differences
between foxable and accounting income for the year and reversat of fiming differences of earlier years.

Deferred fax is measured based on the tax rates and the tox laws enacied or substantively enacted of the balance sheet dote. Deferred
fax assels are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonabile certainity that sufficient taxable income will be available agoinst
such deferred tax assets can be reclised. In situations where the company has unabserbed depreciation or carry forward losses, all
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual cerfuinty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against
future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet dote the company reassesses unrecognised deferred fax assets. if recognises unrecognised deferred tax assels
1o the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virually ceriain, as the case may be that sufficient future toxoble
income will be available against which such deferred fux assets can be realised.

impairment

The Carrying armounis of assels are reviewad at each bolance sheet date for any indication of impairment bosed on infernal/external
factors. Where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amournt, provision for impairment is made to adjust the corrying
value fo the recoverable amount. The recoverabie amount is the greater of the assets estimated net realizable value and value inuse. In
assessing value in use, the estimoted future cash flows are discounted to their present value using an appropriate discounting rate.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

Foreign currency iransactions during the yeor are recorded o the roles of exchange prevailing on the date of the fransaction. Foreign
currency moenetary assets and liabilities are transiated info rupees of the rafes of exchange prevaiing on the date of the Bolance Sheet.
All exchange differences are dealt with in the staternent of Profit and Loss account.

%il} Government Gronts

Government grants are recognized when there reasonable assurance thet the compony will comply with the conditions atached to them
and the grants will be received.

Government grants whose primay condifion is that the company should purchase, consfruct o otherwise acquire capifal ossels are
presented by deducling them from the carrying value of the assels. The grantis recognised as income over the life of a depreciable asset
by way of o reduced depreciation charge.

Other government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to mach them with the costs for which are intended to
compensate, on a systernatic basis,

xili} Contingencias / Provisions

al In terms of the requirement of the Accounting Standard-29 (AS-29) on "Provisions, Conlingent Liabilities ond Confingent Assels :
A provision is recognized when the Company has ¢ present obligation as a results of past evertts and it is probable that an outfiow of
resources will be required o seftle the obligation, in respect of which a relioble estimate con be made. Provision are not discounted
fo its present volue and are determined based on management eslimate require fo settie the obligation ot the balance sheet dote.
Contingent fiability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outfiow of resource embodying the econornic benefit is remaote. These are
reviewed at each balance sheel date ond adjusted fo reflect the current manageroent estimates.

bl Where as a result of past events, There is o possible obifigation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources, no
provision is recognized but appropiate disclousure made as contingent fiability uniess the possibility of outfiow is remote.

2 Contingent Liabilities
Current Year Previous Year
Rs.inlacs Rs. in Lacs
al Claim against the company not acknowledged as debis
) Mik Cess disputed by the company relating fo issue of applicabifity, against
which the company has led an appeal with High Court, Punjab & Haryana 246.60 221.39
{A sum of Rs.72.96 lacsiPre Yr. Rs.72.96 Lacs) deposited under protest)
i Other motters 156.97 156.97
bl Contingent Liabilify for Bills Discounied 170147 3,508.23
¢} Lobility under Bank Guarantee 13.46 4485
d Estimated omount of Confracis remaining fo be executed on capitol occount 77.83 124.16
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The Company s primarily engaged in the business of manufacture, purchase and sale of ghee, skimmed milk powder, Lactose and milk "Dairy
Praducts). The other aciivities of the company comprise pasteurising and packing of fresh milk on job work basis and manufaciuring of curd. The
income from these activities and export of doiry producis is not material fless thon 10%) in financial terms. Accordingly segment information as

per AS-17 hos not been disclosed.

4 The deferred fox liability comprise of the following -

As ot Asat
31st March, 200 3ist March, 2010

o} Deferred Tox Lobilty

Related to Fixed Assels 9,027,200 {5,734 466}

bl Deferred Tox Assels

Due to Disalfowance under the Income Tax Ach, 1961 539,735 169,497

{8,487 466} {5,564,%69)

5 The Company has not received information from vendors regarding their staius under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Develapment Act, 2006 and hence disclosure relating fo amounts unpaid as af the year end fogether with inferest paid / payable under this

Act have not been given.

& ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE F‘QQV!SEONS OF PARAGRAPHS 3,4C AND 4D OF
VEOF THE COMPANIES ACT 1956,

Note: Previous year figures hove been menlioned in brackets

A lcensed Capacity ond instolled Capacity and Actual Production

LICENSED INSTALLED ACTUAL

PRODUCTS UNIT CAPACHTY CAPACITY PRODUCTION
Fat/Buter/Cream/Ghee Tonnes N/A * 23,160
17,0321
SMP/WMP/DW/DC/SNF Tonnes N/A * 26,832
13,594
Mitk / Skimmed Milk / Toned/Doublg
foned Pasteurized/Processed Tonnes N/A i 183,742
{205,442}
Curd Tonnes N/A * 40,138
{655}

*In view of leverage of multiple items of Dairy Products the instalied capacily has not been mentioned.
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B Paticulars in respect of sales

Unit of QUANTITY YALUE
Guaniity Rs in Lacs
Fai/Butter/Crearn/Ghee Tonnes 23699 56569
18,821 {43,908}
SMP/WMP/DW/DT/SNF Tonnes 34134 48331
{25,196} {28,489}
Milk / Skimmed Mitk / Toned/
Double Toned Pasteurized/Processed Tonnes 183742 45280
{205,442} {32,038}
Curd Tornes 40138 0067
{6551 {233
C  Details of Finished Goods
Unit of OPENING STOCK Closing Stock Purchases und confract
PRODUCTS Quantity manufaciuring
Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value
Rs in lacst {Rs in locs) Rs in locs)
Fai/Butter/Cream/Ghee Tonnes 1150 2,474 1,768 3,550 157 2334
{826} {1,355) {1,150} {2,474} 2,131 {4,611
SMP/AWMP/OW/DIC/SNF Torines 1,81 1,746 1,333 1730 6823 8396
{1,734 {1,3801 {1,811 {1,746 {11,682} {12,191
TOTAL 2,961 4,220 3,100 5,280 7.980 10,730
{2.557) {2,735} {2,961 {4,220 {13,795} {16,801
D Details of Raw materials indigenous) consumed during the year 1)
Unit of 2010-11 2009-10
PRODUCTS Quantity Quantity Value Quantity Value
Rsintacs Rsinlacs
Milk Tonnes 55080022 12317147 280,763.86 60,863.86
Butter Fat/Ghee Tonnes 5117.44 9917.74 2,118.82 4,525.26
Others Tonnes 270375 3599.50 14,486.47 16,685.64
13668871 82,074.76

£ Farnings elc. In foreign exchange during the year

Export of Goods -FOB Value
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KWALITY DAIRY {(INDIA) LIMITED

F Foreign Exchange Oulgo Rs.inlacs
CIF Value of imporls 2010-1 2009-10
Capital Goods m
Raw Material

- 73.84
A 73.84

7 Payment to Auditors - 2010-11 2009-10

i Audif Fees 1.50 1.00

ii Tax Audit Fees 0.50 0.25

8 Managerial Remuneration 2010-1 2009-10
Saluries and Allowances 2336 7.20

9 fatement of Earning Per Share

2010-11 2009-10

i Net Profit after fax attributable as per cccount Rupees in lacs) 4594.30 1,855.68

ii {Excessy short provision for fax of earlier year Rupees in lacs} -0.01 61.03

iii Net Profit atiributable 1o Equity Shareholders Rs. In lacs) 4594.31 1,794.65

iv Weighted Average Number of Equily Shares
used as denominator for calculating £PS 203,186,434 182,000,000
Nominal value per shore in Rupees) 1.00 1.00
Basic/Diluted Eorning Per Share {in Bupees) 2.26 .99

10 Asrequired by Accounting Standard- AS 18 "Related Parties Disclosure” issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India is as follows :

List of Related Parfies :
o Key managerial parsonnel
- Sh. Sanjay Dhingra
bl Maior Shareholders
- Sh. Sanjay Dhingra
- Sh. Guishan Kumnar *
- Sh. Kishan Dhingra *
- Sh. Naresh Dhingra *
*There is @ change in maior shareholders subsequent 1o Balance Sheet date by way of family sefilement, such that Sh. Guishan Kumar,
Sy, Kishan Kumar and Sh. Naresh Dhingra are no longer Major Share holder and Ms. kanika Dhingra has become major share holder.
s} Relatives of Major Shareholders/Key managerial personnel:
- Ms. Seema Dhingra
- Ms. Pinki Dhingra
- Ms . Kanika Dhingra
di Enterprises of Mojor Shareholder/Key Management Personnel or thelr relatives:

-IMD Proteins Pvl. Lid,

- Super Veg Ofls Pyt Lid
- JMD Oils Pyt Lid

- JMD Veg Oils Pyt Lid

- JTPL Townships Pyt Lid

- Pashupatt Doiries Pyt Lid.
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Details of Transactions/Balances are us follows:

Rs. in Lacs.
Major Shareholders/KMP
Key Management Maijor Relatives Enterprises
ParsonneliKMP Sharsholders
i  Transactions with related parties during the year
a  Managerial Remuneration 23.16
{7.20)
b Loans and advances received 2,500.00
{2,000.00}
Year End Bolances 142 - 6,000.00
{5.52) {3.40} {4,500.00}
¢ Collateral Security/guarantee against loan availed by Company - 2.500.00
{1,000.00} {6,100.00}
d Guorantee faken for Financial Limits enjoyed from banks 39,000.00 it
{22,000.00 {20,000.00}
e Current Account Transactions
Amount Received /lgiven)
i} Maximum Balonce af any time 174219
{3,387.80})

Note: Previous year figures have been mentioned in brackets
I Disclosure in respect of ransactions which are more than 10% of the
fotol fransactions of the same fype during the yeor

2010-11 2009-10
infer Carporate Loans received
JMD Proteins Pvi Uid Nif 1.000.00
IND Veg Oils Pyt Lid Nil 1,000.00
Pashupati Dairles Pvi Lid 2500.00 -
Current Account Transactions
Amount Received /{given]
Moximurn amount ot any time

~MD Oils Pyt Lid 1354.30 1.525.68

- Super Veg Oils Pvt Lid 250.63 1125.62

-IMD Proteins Pvi Lid 137.25 736.50
Amount outstanding as af year end
infer Corporate Loans received
JMD Proteins Pvt Lid 2500.00 2500.00
JMD Veg Olls Pt Lid 1000.00 2000.00
Pashupati Dairies Pyt Lid 2500.00 -
Current Account Transactions
Amount Received /lgiven)

-JMD Oils Pyt Lid NiL Nit

- Super Veg Oils fvi Lid NiL NiL
Guarantee obtained for limits enjoyed by the Company
Super Veg Oils Pvi Lid Nil 19,000.00
JTPL Townships Pvi Lid 2500 15,600.00

i Detail of Security given agoinst :

al Secured Loans availed : Short term / Working Capital Loans from banks are securad against hypothecation of stack , book-debls, plant &
Machinery and additionally secured by equitable morigage of faciory land & building under consorfiumn facility of Rs.390 Crore.
The Consorium bank facilifies are further secured by way of personal guarantee of major share holders. (Refer Note 10 d)

bl Unsecured Loan : Sales Tax Deferment Loan Secured by Bank Guarantee of Rs. 3.86 lacs and Surety Bond by Director of the Company

¢ Contingent Liahifity for Bills Discounied {Under Trade Finance Fadility} include the sum of Nit .Y, Rs.2750.00 Lacs and Rs.2350.00 Lacs
respectively) , was secured against equitable mortgage of land owned by JTPL Townships Pyt Lid, saiisfaction of charge filed subsequent
to Balance Sheet Date (Refer Nofe 10 d)
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in accordance with the provisions of the AS-28 issued by instifule of Chartered Accountants of India on Impairment of Assels, the
Company has carried out an impairment fest in respect of all ossets. On the basis of such exercise the company has defermined that for

the year ended 31st March 2011, no impainment / reversal of loss is required.

EMPLOYEE BENEFRITS

in accordance with the Accounting Standard 15 [AS-15] Revised) ‘Employee benefits’ the Company has provided for gratulty and leave

encashment bosed on acluarial valuation done as per Projecied Unit Credit Method.

Defined Benefit Plan
Change in Benefit Obligation

Liability o the beginning of the year

interest Cost

Current service cost

Benefit Paid

Actuariol {goinitoss on obligation

Liobitity of the end of year-recognized in the Balance Sheet

Expenses recognized in the Income siatement
Current service cost

Net Actuarial {gaini/loss to be recognized
Expenses recognized in Profit and loss
Account

Adtuarial Assumptions
Discount rate current

Salary escalation current
Mortality

Withdrawal rate 18 1o 60 Years

An amount of Rs.1732340/-PY. - Rs.548535/- us confribution towards defined
contribution plan is recognized as expense in the Profit & Loss Account.

Future commiiments in resped of ossels acquired under Finance Scheme

Minimurm Instaliments
Payoble within one year
Loter than one year but not later than 5 years

Present Value of minimum instaliments
Payable within one year
Later than one year but notlater than 5 years

Previous Year's figures have been reworked, rearranged, reclassified and

InRs. nRs.
2010-1 2009-10
Groduity & Leave Gratuity & Leave
Encashment Encashment
1876829 1347306
154414 107489
1190206 608789
{113,901 {19,012}
387,720 {167,743}
3495268 1876829
1344620 716278
387,720 167,743}
1,732,340 548,535

8.25% per annum
5% per annum
LC 94-96 Ulimate
2% per annum

8% per annum

% per annum

LC 94-96 Uliimate
2% per annum

Rs. in Lucs Rs. in Lacs
2010-1 2009-10
40.91 11.58
5197 12.66
34.58 10.03
48.62 nH

regrouped where considered necessary fo make them comparable with the current year's figure.

As per our Report of even date

FOR PP MUKERIEE & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm's Registration No.023276N
Sidhant Guplal
Executive Director

CA PP Mukeriee,

Membership No.:089854

Proprietor

Place  New Delhi
Dated  Seplember 1,201

On Behalf of Board of Directors

Suniay Dhingral
Managing Director

{Deepa Kapoor)
Company Secrelary
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND A COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFUE
SCHEDULE VIPART IV
i. Registration Defails
Registration No.

[cla[s5]clol7] State Code {Refer Code List)

Balance Sheet Date [2Tol1[1]
Date Monih Year

i1, Capital Raised During the yeor (Amount in Rs. Thousand}

Public issue

CT T Il T 11
Bonus issue

CT T TalafT el e |

Rights Issue

I O I T O

Private Issue

CT T INTeqe T T ]

{1, Position of Mobilisation and Devolopment of Funds {Amount in Rs. Thousandi

Total Liabilifies
[ 5T 3] e[ 7] o of 8l

Sources of Funds

Paid-Up Capital

LT T Tz[ol 3] 8l ¢ [ [ [7Jol7T2]9]¢]
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans
[T Talel al el 4l 2 9] LT T Telolilsfol9]

Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets
[T [ Ta[ 9l ol sl 0

Net Current Assels
[al 7] 4l s[ ol of 8l

L.t

Accumuiated-Losses

I I N I Y O N N I I B
IV, Performonce of Company Amouni in Rs. Thousand)
Turnover Total Expenditure

[CThTel ol 8l 2] af ol ¢l

Profit/Loss Before Tux
1] CT T Telol 5[ 7] 71 3
{Please tick Appropriate box + for profit, - for Loss)
Earning Per Share

CT T T T 1ol Tale

EN L]

Total Assels

51 [el7]0]0ls]

Reserves & Surplus

Invesiments

(I

N[ Ie] T 1

Misc. Expenditure

LT [ 1

[1TeT3la]

ChTsTalzTlel7 0 17]

Profit/toss After Tox

[4]5]9(4]38]0]

Dividend Rate %

[ o]

V. Generic Nomes of Three Principal Producis/Service of the Company {os per monetary ferms}

ttem Code No. IR NN 92 I 2 I T O I I O
Product sTmlplsIwimlels0oTwl /ol IsInlel T T T T 1T T T |
Deseription (rrrrirr1rr1rr1r1r1rr1rr1r1r 1111 & 1 [ 11

(I rrrrrrrrr1r1rrrr1rrr1rr 1111
flem Code No. lofal Tolv] T T 11

Product MITTLIKI7[SIK[TIMIMIEID] [MIITTLIKIZITIOINIEIDT/T ]

Description [BToTCTB8[LTE] TTIOINTEIDT/TPIAISTTIEJUIRTIISTETIDT ]
DIpTRJoTeTelsTsTelol T T T T T T T T T T T 1T T T
LT T T T T T T 11

itern Code No. [eTafols] IsTol T 1

Product

(GIHTETET/TFTATTI/TBTOITITIEIRI/TCIRTETATM] [ T |

Description
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KWALITY DAIRY (INDIA) LIMITED
Registered Office: Villoge Softg, Tehsi Palwdl, Faridabad, Horoyana-121004
ATTENDANCE SLIP
19th Annual General mesting
fMonday, 26th September 2011 of 1L00 am
VENUE: Village Softa, Tehsil Palwal, Faridobad, Haryana-121004

DP id: Folio No.:

ClientiD: No. of Shares held:

Member's Nome:

Complete Address:

I hereby record my presence of the 19th Annuat General Meeting of the company o be held on Monday, 26th September 2011, of 11.00am af
Village Softa, Tehsil Palwal, Distt. Faridabad, Horyano-121004

Member's Signature

if proxy aftends instead of Member:
Proxy's Name: Proxy’s Signature

Note:
Members/Proxy/Holders wishing fo atiend the meeting must bring thelr dully filed and signed attendance slip with thern. NO GIFT/COUPON WILL
BE DISTRIBUTED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING.

KWALITY DAIRY (INDIA} LIMITED

Registered Office: Villuge Softa, Tehsit Palwal, Faridabad, Harayona-121004

PROXY FORM
AT YU OO OO OO OO SO SUOOPPSE PTO PP PSP NP TR P SR
R/o: .. eing o member/members of
Kwality Dairy indic) Lmited, REreby aPROIT MIAMS. (...t
RUIBicdlvvesmsmseneasassisscsmminissessssxsatsuns o bnsonsnsmms S Snsits s sasssssens sasis osm BRSPS T TS T T Y ovess eGSR 350 of failing him/her
PAETRES, .o oonmansssmssmsmse ssmssssans ssnsnd RS TR PR AN s B B3 oo s

As my/our proxy in my/our absence fo attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf af the 19th Annual General Meeting of the company fo be
held on Monday' 26th September 201 af 11.00am at Village Softa, Tehsil Palwad, Faridabad, Haryana-121004" and af ony adiournment thereof

DR id. Folio No,

Client1D S, NoofSharesheld R Affix 1 Rupee

Proxy's nume Proxy’s Signature Revenue
Stamp

Signed this samsammremsmramem day of L e 2011 Signature of the member

Note:

The proxy form, to be effective, must be depsited, dully filed ond authenticated ot the registered Office of the company not less thon 48 hours
before the scheduled fime of the meeling.
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